
 
1 
 

 
 

Notice of a meeting of 
Council 

 
Monday, 17 October 2016 

2.30 pm 
Council Chamber - Municipal Offices 

 
Membership 

Councillors: Chris Ryder (Chairman), Klara Sudbury (Vice-Chair), Matt Babbage, 
Paul Baker, Garth Barnes, Ian Bickerton, Nigel Britter, Flo Clucas, 
Chris Coleman, Mike Collins, Bernard Fisher, Wendy Flynn, 
Tim Harman, Steve Harvey, Colin Hay, Rowena Hay, Karl Hobley, 
Sandra Holliday, Peter Jeffries, Steve Jordan, Adam Lillywhite, 
Chris Mason, Helena McCloskey, Paul McCloskey, Andrew McKinlay, 
Dan Murch, Chris Nelson, Tony Oliver, Dennis Parsons, John Payne, 
Louis Savage, Diggory Seacome, Malcolm Stennett, Pat Thornton, 
Jon Walklett, Simon Wheeler, Roger Whyborn, Max Wilkinson, 
Suzanne Williams and David Willingham 

 

A Moment of Reflection 

(to be led by the Mayor or the Mayor's Chaplain) 
This will be of an inclusive nature. All Members are welcome to participate but need 

not do so. 

 

Agenda 
    

1.  APOLOGIES  

   
2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

   
3.  MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING 

Minutes of the meeting held on 18 July 2016 
(Pages 
5 - 26) 

   

4.  COMMUNICATIONS BY THE MAYOR  
   

5.  COMMUNICATIONS BY THE LEADER OF THE COUNCIL  
   

6.  TO RECEIVE PETITIONS  
   

7.  PUBLIC QUESTIONS 
These must be received no later than 12 noon on the fourth working 
day before the date of the meeting 

 

   
8.  MEMBER QUESTIONS 

These must be received no later than 12 noon on the fourth working 
 



    

 
2 
 

day before the date of the meeting. 

   
9.  PETITION REGARDING CHANGES TO THE C BUS ROUTE IN 

SPRINGBANK 
Report of the Cabinet Member Development and Safety 

(Pages 
27 - 34) 

   
10.  VISION 2020: BUSINESS CASE FOR LOCAL AUTHORITY 

COMPANY 
Report of the Cabinet Member Corporate Services 

(Pages 
35 - 82) 

   

11.  OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY ANNUAL REPORT 2015-16 
Chair of Overview and Scrutiny Committee, Councillor Tim Harman 

(Pages 
83 - 
100) 

   

12.  AUDIT COMMITTEE UPDATE 
Chair of Audit Committee to address Council 
 
Audit Committee minutes (21 September 2016) 

 

   

13.  NOTICES OF MOTION 
Motion 1 – proposed by Councillor Clucas and seconded by 
Councillor Parsons 
 
“This Council recognises the hardship that is being caused by gender 
and age related changes to State Pensions and calls upon the 
Government to make fair transitional state pension arrangements for 
all women born on or after 6th April 1951, who have unfairly borne the 
burden of the increase to the State Pension Age (SPA) with lack of 
appropriate notification." 
 
Motion 2 – proposed by Councillor Colin Hay and seconded by 
Councillor Wilkinson 
 
“This council notes the decision of Oakley Neighbourhood Project and 
Oakley Regeneration Partnership to close due to the current finances 
being unsustainable. It further notes the substantial benefit to 
residents the project has had in the ward, which has some of the 
highest indices of deprivation not only in Cheltenham but the whole 
County. 
The loss of services, provided by the project, will have a significant 
negative effect on the local community, which will almost certainly 
create greater demand on statutory services.  
 
Therefore, this Council - which is most closely associated with the 
project, should call a meeting of the statutory bodies, CCG, the 
County Council, the Police, Cheltenham Borough Homes and other 
relevant organisations with an interest in the local area to identify 
what services are required and how best to deliver them. That this 
meeting is called with some urgency to ensure residents have some 
continuity. That council also ensures that local councillors are fully 
involved in the discussions.” 
 
Motion 3 – proposed by Councillor Willingham and seconded by 
Councillor Sudbury 
Preventing Coerced Debt and Financial Abuse 
“Cheltenham Borough Council notes the important and valuable work 

 



    

 
3 
 

performed by the Gloucestershire Domestic Abuse Support Service 
(GDASS) across the County.   
 
This Council is concerned that whilst many areas of Domestic Abuse 
are addressed by primary legislation, have well-defined best practice 
to try to prevent them and have support services that can provide 
assistance to victims; the victims of Coerced Debt and Financial 
Abuse can be left with little redress against their abuser, can 
experience poverty and can become secondary victims of the debt 
collection industry, and that there is currently little guidance and best 
practice for lenders and financial services providers about the 
necessary checks and balances to incorporate into their lending and 
debt recovery procedures to avoid facilitating or exacerbating 
Coerced Debt and Financial Abuse. 
 
This Council notes that it has limited powers to act directly to address 
Coerced Debt and Financial Abuse, but calls upon the Leader of the 
Council, or his delegated Cabinet Member, to ensure that the matter 
is raised with the Local Government Association both to raise the 
profile of this issue and to lobby the government to introduce primary 
legislation to require lenders, financial services providers and the debt 
recovery industry to put safeguards in place to try to minimise the 
occurrence of Coerced Debt and Financial Abuse, and to investigate 
what measures can be put in place to reduce the impact of Coerced 
Debt on the victims of Financial Abuse.   
 
However, in areas such as Housing, Council Tax, Benefits and staff 
training, which locally are in the control or influence of this Council; 
Cheltenham Borough Council resolves to work with partners 
including, but not limited to, GDASS and CAB, to explore how 
measures can be incorporated into Council processes and 
procedures to minimise the risk of Coerced Debt and Financial Abuse 
occurring in our interactions with the people of Cheltenham, and to 
seek to develop and implement a “best practice” policy”. 
 
 

   

14.  ANY OTHER ITEM THE MAYOR DETERMINES AS URGENT AND 
WHICH REQUIRES A DECISION 

 

   
 

Contact Officer:  Rosalind Reeves, Democratic Services Manager, 01242 774937 
Email: democratic.services@cheltenham.gov.uk 

 
Pat Pratley 

Head of Paid Service 





�
�
�
�

�
������

��������	
������������������������	���������	��	��	���������������������

�

��������
�

	��
������������������
����������������

�

����������

�	
���	���� ������	
�����������������������������������������
����������������������������� ��������������!�����������
�������������������������������������!�������"���#�������
$��%��#��%�
��������#�
��	�&����#�
��'����#����
��
$������#������
��������(�))������$��%��(�������*����+���
&������
#��������������
���������������
��*����&���'����
��
,���������������� �������"��
�-��%����(������
����
+�����$�%�����,�����
�$����������������$���������
����"���������(���.���������$�����.��������	�����.�
������
$�/�����.������������,�%���.����������

�
�

	�������
�
�

��� ����������
������������!�
��������������������$�����
�����.��������0�
�

��� �������������������������
"���)����&����������������������������������������������������1����������)����
��������2������2�������������������)����������3�
�
�����������(�))����������������2��%����&������2����
0��
�
�����������.�����������������
��������������������������������������)�����
*���%��"��������!����������$����������4��#���0�
�
�������������'����
�������&��������������4����2���������%�����$����������4��
#���0�
�
�����������.�
���������������)�"��������)���$����������4��#���0�
�
�����������.�������������)����
��������&����������)�$����������4��#����
���������0�
�
�����������	
���������������2��������������������������������5�����������)�
�������������������0�
�

��� ����������������������������
"������������)����������������������6���
�&�����22��%�������������������
������������������7�����������)����&��������������3�
�
"�����
�������������22�������
����&���������&�
������������������������
�������0�$����������������������������(���
�!������������*����&�������)���
���������%������������������0��

Agenda Item 3
Page 5



�
�
�

�

�
��8���

��������	
������������������������	���������	��	��	���������������������

�

�
"������������)���������������������9:�(����&�����22��%�������������������
������������������7�����������)����&��������������3�
�
�0� ;���������������������
�������
�������)����&����&���������
"�����
�����%������������������������������8�(������&�������������������)�
����<����4���������
0�$������������������2�����)�������&��������������������
���%���������������������������������������������������0�
�
$�����2��������������������������
����������)������%��������*����
��������������
������������������&������&����������&��)���6:�
����0�"���2���
�)����
����������������������%�����&�����)�������2�������������&�����������)��&����
���&��������������������������&�������)�������)����*����
������������������
(��
0�"�����
������������%��
����&�����������������������������������%����
)���������������)�(���������������������0�"�����
�����%�����������������)����&����
��
�����&����������2������������������������������������
����������������
�)�����)�������
��)�������������)�����$�����������%��������������������7�����������
��������%��������2�	��������909:�2�0�$����������������������&�������&����
���������%��������������������,�2��
���
���������������$�����
0�
�
80� ;�����*�����������5�����)����&����&���������3�
*��������&��������������������������������-))������)����������������������)�
+������2�����������2��2���������)������2���0��"���������������%������)���22����
����������������2�������&����������������������(�$���������������������9����
(��
�8:�=�2��������������������)������������2�������)����������2����0>��
�

��� ���������������� ������� ���
"�����
�����)������������������������������������������������)�����$�����
�::�
����������������������%������������)��)�����"�&�����$������&����������
���������)�����%��������2�	����0�$�����������������������&���������������0�
�
$��� ���� ����� &�������� ���� ��
��� �)� *����
� ������ &���� �&������� )������� ���
��������������������������6:�
������)�)��������2�&����������&�0�$�����������
���������������������������������&��������))�����)���������2����������)��%����0�
$����?�����
��������������)�������������%���� ���������������2�������� ���������
��������������������������&���������������)��)�������&�����(����+���	�����������
��
����)�*����
���@2�������������������������������0��
�
*�����������������&������������������������)�������������0�
�
!�����
��������
����������������������))������
��2�����������&�����%�������������
�
��������$����
��A�(��
0�
�

��� ���������������� ���������������������������
�����������$��%��(������������������������������������
������������&����
���������������������*����
�%�������������)�������2�������)���������%����������
���
�*���0�
�
"���+��������)���������������(�$����2������������&������%���)��������)����
������������������0�$���&����������������������%����������������&����������)�������
��������������&���0�"���)�����&��������������������������������������
������������+������2���0�����������)�����������B@����������
�����������������
����������)���$�2��������������������������������������&��������

Page 6



�
�
�

�

�
��9���

��������	
������������������������	���������	��	��	���������������������

�

������������)�������-������0�!�����������������������������&������������������
�
�������������2�������)�6�&����0�*���@�������������2������&����������������
(�����
�������������������2�����������)��������������)���������&�����&�����
����������������������)���������
�����.��������������������2������������
2������0�"�����������&����������������%��������������))�����)�����(����������
$������
0�
�
"���+��������)�������������������&�����������������%������
�������������&����
9:��������������)������������������������������2�����)����@��0�*���������������
�����������������������������0�"�����������&�����������������&����������������
���������������������
���������������������0�
�
!�����
������+��������)����������������������������������"��������&��������
7�������+������������������0�
�

��� �������!���������

"#� !
����	�� $�	%� ����� ���&� �	� �'(�������%(��� �	
���)*� �	
���	��
������+�$$�����

� 	���������������%�����������������)�������2����%���22����������)���
2��������2����������)���������#�������)������2���-���2������#�-��&����
����������6���������0��$�����)�������#�-������������2����������������
)�����%�����
����������������������������
����������������������������
������������2�����0���
.�
�&����������2��2�������������������2����������%����2��������
2�������������2����C�
.�������2��&������������������2��%������������������������������������
���&������������������#�-�+�������������������������������������������
)�����C�
�

� ���,	����$�	%��'(�������%(����	
���)�

� #����������
��#��������������2���-���2������#�-4���&�������������
&�������2�������������������������2�������������������2��2�����������
�������������)�����)�����2������)������
�
��������������)��������
���������������������&�����&������������������������2���������������0�*�
������)�2���������������������������������������������2��2���
�������
���������������2������2�������)���������������%����������������0�
�
�����������2����%���22������������������������������)���2��������
2�����������������������������#�-4����������������������)���������%��
��)�����
�������4����)�������������0�$�����������������������)���������������
&�������������������7�����&��������������������������)�����������������
�������)����������2����%���22���������0�
�
*���������)�������������������������������#�-4����%��������?������
������������2�����������������)����@��2��3��
�
D���������"�����������)�����2���������%��
��%�������E��
D���������"�����%����)�����2���
����������&�
����%�����������
��������
&�������2��2���
���������%���������@������E�
D������������2������������)�������2����&�������������������������2���������
��%���2�������������&���������
�����)������������������������)�������������
���������������)�����2����0�
�

Page 7



�
�
�

�

�
��=���

��������	
������������������������	���������	��	��	���������������������

�

�
�

	�� �������!���������

"#� !
����	��$�	%��	
���	����%��'�%'���	��'(�������%(����	�,	�'������-����*�
�	
���	���	)���./0(	����

� "����������������������
�2��)�������������%��;�������
�&������&����	�%���������
����)����)��������8:F8:�2������0�
����
8:F8:������2��������)���������������))�������%�����&�������������������&���������
���2���������%����&��������������
�2����������%������)�������������%����0�.��������
������������������)����&����������������������2�������������������8:F8:�
����������C��*����&��������@2������������������&����2��������)��������������������)�
G�H1�:::�&�����&�������������������������������@��
������������)�����������������C�

�

� ���,	����$�	%��'(�������%(����	�,	�'������-�����

� "������������������&�����������#����������������?�������0�������������������)���������
I	�%��������������)���4��������2�������
���������))�������%���0����
�����������&���
�����&�����������%����J�)����@��2����)������������������&��������������@�����)������
#�����������)���J�������������&������%��
������I)������)��))���4�2������)���������%���0�
-)���������������%��%��������)��������������������������2�&��������������)�����
2�����0�������������������&���������������������������
��2������)����������)���
��%�������������2�&����������������7��������2��%�������)�&0��
�
"���G�H1�:::�)������&��������?������2��������
�������������������$��%�����
G�:H�:::�K�	�%��L���%��2����GH=�:::�K����������$��%��������������������������
$��%�����������������I)�����)�����4����������I������))���4�����������0�
�
"������������������2�������������������8:8:�%����������������2�����������&�����-$$��
��"����������)������������������%����0�
�
"���������������2����������%��������������������������������������������������������
&����������������������&�����?���������)���%���2���������������)���8:�AF�5��������
�����@���)��2������������"!$����2�����)�������������@������0�
�
�������22��������
�?��������������������#����������������������������������
���)���������@������������)������������������������������������&������������7��2��������
�����
�&�
��
��������������0�.�����������������������������������@�����������)�����
-%��%��&�����$������
���������������8�$�2����������)���
�����)�������������
���&�����
�?��������C�
�
������2��������������������������������&�������������2��%������)������)��������@����
��������)������������������������&�%������������������������&���?�������)��2��%���������
�������� ������ ����� ��� ����� ���������� &���� ���� ������ ������ 2�������� ��� ���� 8:8:�
2���������2� ��� ����&�
� )��&���0�"������������������&����������
�������&�
� ������
&���?��������)������ ����� ���
�&����� ������� �����������������������������?�����
� ���
&��������)�������
������������
��������������0�#�����)���������&����������22
����
������� -L$� ��� �8� $�2������0�
�

1#� !
����	�� $�	%��	
���	����%��'�%'�� �	��'(�������%(������'���*��	
���	��
�	2��'��'0�

� .������������������������2������������������������2�������2��������&������������������
)�������)� ����������C�

Page 8



�
�
�

�

�
��H���

��������	
������������������������	���������	��	��	���������������������

�

�
���������������&�����2��������������������������%��&���� ���������������������������
��������2���������2����������2���������)�����������������2���������������������������)�
���������������
���7����%�����������������������))���������������C�

� ���,	����$�	%��'(�������%(������'����

� ������&�����������?����������������2������������������������������������)���
�
���������������&��������2���������������������������&��������������)��������
����������������������������������%��������%��%��0�
�
#�&�%����������&����������?����������������������2���������������������)����&�3�
$����?�����������������4��&������&���)����������������*�������������������������
����
������������&��������������)������������2��������������������������%��0��"�����������
������22�����������������%���2������&�
�)��&������������������������������������
�
���������������������������������������������������������)�����2�������������������
%�������
��)���
�2��2�����0�
�
*��2�����)���������������������������������������2���������������
������&�
������
��������������&���������%������'�2����������2�������2������������������0�"�������������
�
���������%���2��������������������
������������������%�������������������2��)������
��������2�������0��#�������������)����2�����)����������������)��&�������������������
��%���2���������)����������@������0�
�
*�
����������%���2�����&�����������7�������������������������������������������2��������
����%�������
��������0���&�����)���������������������������������
������������������
��������������)����������������������������������
�������������������%��
���2�������
�������%���2��0�
�
�������22��������
�?��������������#�������������������������������&�����������
������������������������������������)���������%�����������2������)��))��������
�������������
��2���������������������������������
����2�����%���������2��������)���
�))��������������������������������)�������&������������������
0�
�
"����������������������������������&�����&�����������������))����������������
2��%��������������&����������������������������������������������������������������
��������������������@���������%���2���������������������)�����������0�
�

3#� !
����	�� $�	%� �	
���	�� �'((')�� �	� �'(����� ��%(��� ��'�� '��� ������
��-��	�%���*��	
���	���	�%'���

� .����������
������������������������������)�������������������
�������������&����0�.����
�������������������)����&������@��2����)����������������������������))���&�������
������&���������������)������
�����C���
�

� ���,	����$�	%��'(�������%(�����'��'�����������-��	�%�����

�  ����������������������2������&������%�����
��)���))������&�
��)�������������������
����
�������0�.�������������������������
������"�&������
�������������������%�������������
���������&������������������������%����������&������������)������
������������������
���
����������!�������)�,����,������������������������&����,������������������������
��@����������������&�
������&�&���2�����0���
��
.������������)������
��������%������������������������������������������������&�����
�����������
��������������@�������������������������������������	��
������!������
�
�	!��������������0�"�����
2���)�����������������4��2��%��������������?�����
����
������

Page 9



�
�
�

�

�
��6���

��������	
������������������������	���������	��	��	���������������������

�

��������
���%�����������������������)����������������������4��&�������������
���2����������������������������)��������������������������������&���������
���
����������������������������������0�
��
#�&�%�������2�����)�����&���������&�
����2��2��������)�������2������������%����
������������8:�A��&��������������������2��������������)����������������
������
���������������������������������2�������%����������������������
����������������������0�
"�����22����������������&�����������������)������������������&�������2���������������
�����2�������������������))����%���2�����)�������������0�
��
"����*�������������������������������������������2��%������������������%����2��������
)�������2��2����)�����������0�

4#� !
����	�� $�	%� �	
���	�� �'((')�� �	� �'(����� ��%(��� ��'�� '��� ������
��-��	�%���*��	
���	���/�����	�%'��

� #�&����
������������������2������������&��������%��������&�������2������������
���������2������������������C�
�

� ���,	����$�	%��'(�������%(�����'��'�����������-��	�%�����

� !�������2����9�
�����������������������))�������2��������������������)����!������
�
��������
��)�G8������&��������&����������������2�������&������������������������
����&������)��������������&����������������������������)���������������0�.����&�
������
�������������&����������������������)���
�)��������������&���������������������
��������0�"��������������&���������)�����������1HM0��
��
.����%���������������2��������������%�������&����
����2�������0�.����%��������������
��������������������������)��2�����2������������������%�������&���������%�����������
2�������������B��������2����������������2��
����������2�����������0�"�������%�������
���������������#	��������������������)�����%�������0�"���������������������)�������
����������%�������������������"�@������������&�������������0��
��
"�����2���������������������������
�������
��������&����������
���%���22��@������
�
�H�5::��������������������2���������2���������=�A:9�������9��������8:�H���9�611����
���9��������8:�=������8�A5��������9��������8:�90�����������)����&���������������������
������2����&�������)����������������������%���������%���)�������������0�
�
�������22��������
�?����������������������������������)��������������������������
2�2�������������C�
�
"���������������������2��������������&����������22
��������������������)������������
���������������������������
���������)�������������������������������2������)������2������
�)��������&��������������������������������������������&���������������
�������������
&����� ���
� ������ ���2���� �)� ��� )���� �)� ������0�
�

5#� !
����	�� $�	%��	
���	���'((')�� �	��'(�������%(�����-�	,%����'��� �'���
�'$��0*��	
���	�������2���6��'0�

� �������������������������2������2��%��������2��������������2�������������)�����
�����������"����2�����������������������������*������$�����������������2���������0�
�

� ���,	����$�	%��'(�������%(����	
���)�'����'$��0�

� "���������)�����&��������*������$�������������������������
����������������������
�
�����������������������=���*2���������������������5���(��
�8:�6����2������0���
�����%���������������������������2��%��&�����������������������������������������))��)�

Page 10



�
�
�

�

�
��A���

��������	
������������������������	���������	��	��	���������������������

�

������&��������������������������������)�����������&��������2���0�
�
"������))���)��&����������%�����������������%�������������������
���������������
�
)�����������J����))�������������������������������J��������������������22��2�����0�
�
�����������������������2����������������������������@����������������������
2��2���������)���2�����8���2������$?��������������������������
���������)�������������
��2�������������)�2���������������)�����
�����
�&������������2�����������2��������&�������
����������
����������������������2�������������?���������0�
�
�������22��������
�?����������������������������������&�����2������&����������
����������������@2����)�������������
����������)������������������������2������
2����0�
�
"��� �������� ������� ��%����� ����� ���� ����������� ,�%���2����� "���� !����� ����
�������%�����%�������2�����������������������������2��%�����!����
��
����))����))������
)�������0�"��
�������%����������������2���������������������&����������������)������
2�������� ��%�� ����� ��2������ ���� ���� �������� ������� ��� ���� �����
� �������� ����
���)������ ����� ��� ���� %��
� )�&� ������� ��� ���� �����0� "��� �����
� �������� ���� �����
��?������� ���2��� ����� ���&���������������� ��� ������������&������ ������@�� )����&����0�
������8�&�����������
����������������������������������������������?�����������
�����
��������� ������)���������@���� ����)�����������2������0�#��&����������22
����
������������������������2��������������������0��

7#� !
����	�� $�	%� �	
���	�� �'-')�� �	� �'(����� ��%(��� ��'�� '��� ������
��-��	�%���*��	
���	���	�%'��

� ��������������������������2��2��������)�����������&������������)�������������
��������������"�&������
���������&����0���������@2�����&�
�&���������������������
�������������������������������2�����������C�
�

� ���,	����$�	%��'(�������%(�����'��'�����������-��	�%�����

� ��������������)��������������
�2�2���������������������������������)�"�&������
�����
��������&���������������)�������������������)�2��2������������������&�����)���0�
��
"���(�����.��������������������%�����2��)���������2�����)���8:�HF�6����8����(�����
&��������&�������&������&����������������������������&����������������������
��
�����������&�����������������������%���������������)�������)����&�����2�������������
=AH���4��������������������)�=6=���4����������
��)��������������������������
����������������J�������&�����2����H��)�������2���0��
�
���23FF������@�0���������������0��%0��F���������F���5=HF*�����M8:����M8:��M8:�
M8:���)�������M8:����������M8:������������M8:"�����
M8:8��(���
8:�6M8:�:0::M8:���������������M8:(��02�)C"K1�
�
	��
����������&�����2��)��������������������2�������0�.����������������������)�������
���2����������2��)�������������������������*����������������������������������
�
��������)����@��2���������&��������������2����0�#�������������������&������
�������������2��%��������������������%�������2����������������)�����&��������������
���������&�����������������������
������&�����2�������0�
�����������$�%�������������������������������)������������2����0�"�����������
��������2�����������������������2��%���������������2��������������22�������&�������
�����22��������������������������������������&����������22
����������������������������
������������0��
�

8#�� !
����	�� $�	%� �	
���	�� �'-')�� �	� �'(����� ��%(��� ��'�� '��� ������

Page 11



�
�
�

�

�
��5���

��������	
������������������������	���������	��	��	���������������������

�

��-��	�%���*��	
���	���	�%'��

� �
������������������������������������������������)���������
�����������������������)�C�
��������������������������������������������2����������%�����9�&����
�����
�����������C�

� ���,	����$�	%��'(�������%(�����'��'�����������-��	�%�����

� .��������������
�����������������%��������2�������%�������������2��%������&���������
���
���������%������&����2�������������������������������������8:�A0�
��
.����������������������������4�%��&����������&�������������)����������������&����
������2�������������������������%����0�"����)����&��������������
���%����������������
��������2�����������������������@�������&���������������)����������������������%��
������
)����)��?����
�����������)������������������������&����������������������������
2������
��
����)�������������
���������������������&�������?���������������������������2������)�
�������%���0�
��
*��2�����)�����&����&��������������������������������������������22��������������
�
�������������������������&�����������������������������������������������)�����������
��������)�����������&���������������
����������������������������������������
������
������������22����������������&����
���)���������������0�
��
����%��2��������
��������������������������&��&��4�������2������������
������������
�����%���������%���������������)������&�����������������������������&���������)��������
&����������������������2����������2�����)�������������0�
�
�������22��������
�?��������������������$�%����������)��������������������������
&�������������%����������)��?���������������������&�����������)������22�����)�����
�����������)�����������0��
�
"������������������&�������������%���������������������������)
�����
�����������������&����������������������������?������������������"N�2��������0�
"�����������)�����2��������������������%������������������&����)��������������)���
����������>��&�����)�����2��%���������22�������
������%��&�&��������%���������������
�����2�����������������������������%���2��������������������������������@2���������)�
���������������&�������������������)��?����
��)�������&����������������0�*�
������������������&����2���������������������������������������&����������2�������)�
&������)��������������)������
������?�������������&��������0�"���)������)������
����������������������������������������������)�&�����������������)�����������������
���
����������������&�������������������������������>����7����%��0�
�
�

�
�


�� ������������������19"5:"7��������������������������+����19"7�
"������������������!�������������������	�&����#�
�������������������2���0�
$����@2���������������,��������8:�H���2���������������2�����)�G9:A��1::�&���
)�������0�"����&�������������)����������������������22���������%��)����&����
�����������!������
�8:�60�
�
"������������������!�������������������������������������%��������)�������
�����������������������&���������������������������������2����������
��������
�������)����@�����2����������������������������)�������������0����&�����2�������
������������������������������)�������������������%���2����������������������

Page 12



�
�
�

�

�
��1���

��������	
������������������������	���������	��	��	���������������������

�

�������������������������������2����������22����������������&���������������
�������
������%���������������������������������������������������"����
!���������$������
0�$����@2���������������������������������������������
�����)�������������������2�&�������������&�������22���������������������������
���&��
�����%���2������������2�����������������������������2������������������
�����2�����)�G�=:��:::����8:�HF�6�&�������������������)����������������������
�������?����������������%�0�$�����2���������������%����������������������������
�����������)����������������&��������&�
�&���������������)������2�������
�
$�2������0�"����&��������2����2��)��������)�����������)�����������������
�������������&����@2�������������������0�������������
�������������)�������
)����&����&����������8:�A�&������2��������������������������������*2������@��

��������)������2�������������
����������)������2���������0�
�
����������)�������%���������))���)�����)�@���=�
����)�����������������������
���������������!������������%�������������������������������������������
�����������������������������������0������
������������������&������������
2�����������������������2����������%��������&������������������)�������
������������
�����-���������������0���������&���&�������&�����))���������
�������������"!$����������������&��������������������%�������2�������)�����
�"!$�&������������22�����)������
�����������0�
�
"������������������!���������2���������������������������������������
G==:�:::��������(����������$������
��%������������)����
����0����&�������������
��&�����������)�������)��������2�������&�����?����������������������&����
��������&�����������2��������������)
��������������������������������2������0�*�
�����%���)�G65�AA1�&����%��������)��������2��2����������
���?�����)��������������
)�������&����������)��&�������������2���������������������������-�������
���������)��������0�"����&�����)�����������2�������������������������������4��
�������0�
�
"������������������!��������������������������2�����)�G891�:8:����
����������������G9:A�1::�������
������2������������������%�����������0�$���2����
����������������))������&���&�������������
�&����������)������%�������������������
��������������������&����%���2�������0����&���2��2�����������������%���������
��������)����������������������22���������%�0��
�
�����������9��)�������2�������)����������������������������8:�A�"�����)���������
�
����������������������������������)�������������������������������&����
��������&������������������2���������
��)������������������������2�����������
��
0�.������������&��������������
�������������2������������������&�����
2��%�������������������������������
���������������������4��2��)���������
)����%�����&����������������������������������&���������������4��)�����������������
����������������&��0�"����������������������������&����������������������&�����
G�::�:::��)����������&�����&��������2����
���%������
��2��������2��
�������
����������������������������������0�$��������%������������������������������
��������2���2��0�
�
"������������������!���������)���������������������������
����������)�����
�������4����2����������������������������������0�$�����2��������������=�(��
�����
�������������%���G68A�5H60�"���������������������������%�����G9�:HH�=H6�
��&�%������������)����������������������������������
����%������)������������������
�������������������&�����������������G�6A�69A����������)�����������������
��%����������������������������0����%��������������������&�������������%�����

Page 13



�
�
�

�

�
���:���

��������	
������������������������	���������	��	��	���������������������

�

�))������
��������������������������������)�G�98�8�A�&�����&����������������
2�����)�����8:�AF�5����������������2������0�
�
$���2��2������������
���%�������%��������������������������������������
��������)������������&����%���2������������2��2�����������������������%����
���������)�G�91�:8:���������)��������������������$������
������%�0�"����&�����
��%�������������������)��@������
������22����2��7�����������������%���&�������������
2����������������%���)��������%������������������G�::�:::������&�����)�������"����
�)������������2�����������������������%���2����������������������%�0�
�
"������������������!�������2��2��������������'��2������������"��
������%��
��������)�����������������������������&�����&�������������������&�����
��������������������4��)���������2��
���������������&�0�
�
����������)������%������������
���������������������������������������
)����&���3�

•� ;�������������%�����G��6�A::�����������������

•� "��� ������������ �)� ���� .��� ��������� &��� ������� ���2����� ����
��������
�2�����&����&������%�������������������::�
��������%�����
�
�)�..��

•� "�������%�������������
�*����������������2������&��������������������
�����

•� ,�����������&���2��%������������&������%��������

•� ����2�������������������@���������������������������

•� "��� #������� 	�%����� -������� ���������� ���&��� �� ���� 2�����%��
%��������&�����������&����)�������)��������%���������%����������2�����
������������������)������
�����

•� "��� ��2����� ���������� ���� ����%����� ���� ������� ������� ������ �)�
��������� ����)������� �������� &���� ����� �))������� �������� �
������ ����
�������������
�������

•� "��� ������ 2����� ������������� ���� ���������� �� )���� ��� ����))� �)� G�1=�:::�
&����������������������������#	*�

�
"���)����&����?���������&������������
����������������2��������%���3�

•� #��� ����8:8:����������� ��� �������)� ����&������&����)� ��%����������
����)���� ���� ��������� ���%����� )���� ���� 2������� ���� ����
��2����������)������������)������������������������������?�������������
�)���%��������������������������� ��2��������)��������������� ����22�
�
)���)����
������%��������)������0� ������2������������������������
��������������������2��2�����&��������������������%�������4���))����)�
)����
����)��������������������������������������������������������0�
$��������������� �����&����&�������������� �%���&������� ���� G�HA��
�����)����)����8:8:���������������������������������

•� ����
�)��&������?���������*22����@�H��*���������@2���������������
������ ���� ������)� ������������
4�����2�������&������������
� )���� ��&�
��?���������������������)���������������2��%�������������2���������
��)���� �������� ��&� ����� &��� ������ 2���������� ��� ����� �����
��?��������� �
� 8:�A0� ��� ���2����� ���� �������� ������� !�������
������� ����� G8:�� ��� ����
� )��&���� ��?������ ������������������� ���
�������� ���� ������0�"������������������,�%���2���������$�)��
�
�����&����������������*������!����$�)��
���2����������%����������
)������� �)� ���� ���%���� �������� ����� ��������� �������� ���� �@2�������

Page 14



�
�
�

�

�
�������

��������	
������������������������	���������	��	��	���������������������

�

����� ����� &��� ���� ��� ���))� ����� ����� ��������0� *� !���� $���������
*����
� ������ ���� ����������� ���� �������4�� 2����� ��� �������� ����
������������22��%�������2�������$�2�������8:�H0�

�
�����;��������
�

"#� �/��$��'���'�	
��
���,��$	�%'����,	����	��$	���/�������'��
��*�
�
%%'������'���,,����<�1�(�������-��*�'����/'�����(���	�����/'��
���-�����/'-��(�������-�����2��/����/����-�����(
�)���$	��19"5:"7�
���
���)����'��'-��)�='$�����'��0�$	�2'�����>
����?�	$�@13A*919#�

1#� @49*999�	$��'��0�$	�2'�����>
�����=��>
����)�%�%(���',,�	-'?�'��
�,,����<�5�(��',,�	-��#�

3#� �/��
���	$��/��(
�)����'-��)�	$�@13A*919�'�����'������������	��3�(��
',,�	-��#�

4#� �/��'��
'����'�
�0�%'�')�%������,	���'���,,����<�8�(���	����
'����/��'��
'�19"5:"7�,�
�����'�'������'�
�0������'�	���(��
',,�	-��#�

5#� �/���',��'�,�	)�'%%��	
��
���,	����	��'�����'��������,,����<�B�
(���	����'����/���'��0�$	�2'���	$�
��,����(
�)�������	�19"5:"7�(��
',,�	-��=�����	��8?#�

7#� �/��,	����	��������,����	$������	��"97�')���%�����'���,'������/�,�
$
����)�')���%�����'���,,����<�A�=�����	��A?�(���	���#�

8#� �/��	
��
���,	����	��������,����	$��	����	���'����$	���	
�����'<�
'����	�C�	%�������'����$	��19"5:"7�����,,����<�"9�(��
�	���=�����	��"9?#�

B#� �/��	
��
���,	����	��������,����	$��	����	���'����$	���
���0���(���
$	��19"5:"7�����,,����<�""�=�����	��""?(���	���#�

A#� �/��$��'���'�	
��
���,��$	�%'����,	����	��$	���/���	
���)�
��-��
�����	
���$	��19"5:"7�����,,��������"1��	�"3�(�������-���
'����/���'��0�$	�2'���	$�
��,����(
�)�������	�19"7:"8�(��',,�	-���
=�����	��"1?#�

"9#��/��(
�)���%	���	���)�,	����	���	��/������	$�+
���19"7�=�����	��"3?�
(���	����'����/��(
�)���-���%����	$�@79*999�(��',,�	-��#�

�

��� ��������������������������������������������������������
�������D������#���������E�������
#�%����������������������������������������������������'����
��.�
������
.�����������(�))�������)�������������0�
�
"������������������!�������������������	�&����#�
�������������������2����
�����@2����������������11A����������������������������2���������$��
��������4��#�����������&�������2������
���������������)����������&���������$��
��������4��#����;����4�����2�&�����%���������)���
��������������������������

Page 15



�
�
�

�

�
���8���

��������	
������������������������	���������	��	��	���������������������

�

��%����������������������)�2��7����������2��%������)�������)�������������0�"���
�����&�����2�2�������������
�)������
����%��������.������#��������#�������
�
���������������&�����������&�������������
��)�����������0�	�������������
������������������G88�:::�2��������0�$���&�����������@2����������������������
�������������8:86�&�������������%��&����8:�A0�"����22����)���������������%������
�����������&������������@�2��7���������;���������2���%���22������������
��������&��������?����������2���������������&��������&�9H�
���������������������
��������������������0�"�������������������������)����2�����������#���������
;����4�����2���%�����&���2�2�����)����������@0�,��������)�����2��2�����&����
����������������������2�������*22����@�������������)�������������������
2��������������������������������2���������������������
�������������0�$���
��2���������������;���������2���%���22��������������������)�����������)�
GH:�:::�&��������
�&�������2�
��%�����2�������)��H�
��������9�M���������0�"��
�
���������������������))����)��������)��������������������22�
�������������)�������
�&���������������������)���)������������%��������������)��������������&����0�"���
;��������2�����������
���������G=��:::��������������)������������������������
G5=�:::0���������&��������)�������������������������������O���2�����2��P�������)�
GH:�:::��������;��������2�&��������)����&���������������3�
�

•� �����������������	�
����������	����		����
������������������������������
�
����������������	����������

•� �����������������	�
����������	�������	������������������������������������
�������������
�����
�	����������������
�����������	���������������
�����������
�������
	�������������
��������
�	���������	�������
���������
��������������

•�  ��!����������������������������������
�������
	������"�
���������������
��		��������������������		�������	����
�����������������#��$�����	�%�	�
��
����	�����������������
��
������	�
���

�
$����@2����������������2��2�������%���2�����&��������2�������������&����
������&�����������������)������������������22���������)��������
�%�������
�
���������������������&�������������������������������2���22��������%��
��)�����
��&�4��2������������������2���������2�&������0�
�
������������������2��2����������������������)����&�������������3��
�

•� $�� ��������4�� #���� 2��%����� �� %�������� ���%���� ��� ������ ���������� ����
��������������������������&������������2��2�����������2������������
)������
�&�����������������2���2������������)������

•� "������������&��������)������������4�����������������@����������@��2���
�)���&���������������������)���������������
�����%������

•� ��������&�����������&����&����������)����������������������)��&�������
�����%������)���������2��������8�������4�����0�
�

�����;��������
�

"#� '��F��C,�����,�G�	'��	$�@59*999�(��%'����	���#��'�)'���H���'�
��������	
,#�

1#� �/���F��C,�����,�G�	'��(��	$$�����$	���/��,
�,	����	$���'(��)�
$
��/���$
��C�'����)��	��'&��,'�������	������	��2��/��/��
�	����
���	��	$��/��,�	,	����'���<����'������������	��3#�

Page 16



�
�
�

�

�
���9���

��������	
������������������������	���������	��	��	���������������������

�

3#� �/���F��C,�����,�G�	'��(��	$$�����	��'��������	$��	�����	�������	
��
��������	��5#�

4#� �
(I���� �	� �/���� �	�����	��� (���)� %��*� '� $
��/��� ��,	��� 2�� (��
�	���������(0��	
�����	�')����2/��/����/��F��C,�����,�G�	'��(��
�
��������	�'��')�����	'�#�

�

���� ������������������
���������
�
"���)����&�����������&���2��2������
��������������'����
������������
�
������������������
�
&������	���������������	�������������������������������������������������������
'������(�������������������)����
�������"�
��������	����
	�
������������
���������
���
������	�������������
�
������	�����������������
��������	��������	����
��*�����������
�����������
�������)����
���������
�
������	��������������
����������������������
��+�
�����
�����	����
�������
����
�
�����������������
�������
	����,��
��
�����	���������������������	�
*������
)����
����������������		����
�����	
�	���
�����	������������������������
�
������	�����	*����������*����������������������������������������������
���	����
�"�
�������������������������	��������	����
�"�
���������,������

		�����
�������������������-�
�
�������������'����
���������������������������������������������������������
�)�����������������%�����������������2�����������������������0������������
��'����
����������������������)���������&���%���������������������������
��7����%���)������@���������%����������2����������)��&���0����&�����2������������
������������������������������/�����������������������%��
���������������)���
����2��2����)�����������0�"���������������������)����������������������������
�������������������%�����&�������������������������
�&���������2��%���������
%�������0�*���2�������������)����������������&�������&��������������0�������
)��&�������&�����2�������������22�����������&������@����������������������2����
�������������������(����������$������
��������
�����������2��������������������
��������)����&����)���2��%��������2��
����������������������&������%�����������
������&�0�#���������)��������������������������������)��������������������
����
����������%������������2��������2����������������������������������
��������%�������������2����0����������������������&����B���2��&����������%��&�
��
0�"����������&���������������������������
������������������&����&�����)�
������������������������@����������&�������������������&�����2�����%����������
)���������&�0�#�������������������������������@���%����&���&����������7����
�
�)�����������
�%�����)���������
�������������������������2��2����)������������
������������������������0�
�
�����������$�%����?�������������������)�����2������O2����������������������
������P�&��������&��������������������������������������)������������������
���������������������������������2��2�����������������)��������������O2���������
�����������������������
P0�#��&����2����������������������������������������

Page 17



�
�
�

�

�
���=���

��������	
������������������������	���������	��	��	���������������������

�

�����������%��&���2����������2�������)�2�������������������
�����������%����������
�������)����������)�����&���%�������0�
�
,���������������������)����&����2������&�����������3�
�

•� "�����2�����)�����������)�)���������������������������B���2����$������
!����� ����B���2����	��������,�%���2�����!����������22������%��� ���
������
� ���� ���������
� ���������������� &��� �����������0�-����������
?������ ����� Q���������� ���� ����� �&������ ������������������0� "��� B;�
��������������������22������������
���������0�

•� �������� &�������� ���� 2������� �22������ �
� ��������� �����������
������������������&������������������������

•� "&�������������&������2��������������
���%�������������������22�������
�
��� ������ ��� ������ )������� ����&���� 
����� 2��2��� ��� ��%���2� ������
���������������)���))���������������������������0�

•� B������� )�������&��� ����� ��� ��22���� 
����� &���� ��� ���� ��&�� %��� ����
�&�������������0�

•� $���� �������� ?���������� ���� ���� �)� ���� &���� I������4� &����� ���
�
�����%���2��7������)����)���
�������2��2��������������������������������
�)������22�������
���������������&��)��&���0�$������������)������������
�)�����&����I������4�&��������������22��2�������)�$��������%�����������%��
����;������'�������

•� ��������)�������������)��������2��������%��%����������������@�����������
������&�����������
���%����������������)�&������������0�$������������
��������������&��������O&�����������P�%��&�����)������������&����������������
�����������������������������������������������
�)����0�"�����&����%�����
����������� ��� ���� ����� �������� �����2��������������������&�����&����
�������
��))�����0�

•� "����� &��� �������� ����� ��2��
����� ������� ����������� &���� ������ ��
������� �)� ���� B���2���� ;����� ����� ��� �������� ���� .������� "����
,������%���B?������
��������������������������������)����@���

•� *��������������������������2����&������&����)�B;�)�������&�������%��
�������%���������&�����&�����$�����)�$������)������������

•� "��� 2������ �)� B;� ���������� ��������� ��� ����������� &��� ��)������ ����
��������)����������������������������������������0�

�
*������������)����������������������������������������������������������)�����
�������������)����@�������������)�������)�����������%��������������������������������
&��������������������)�������)������%���������������������0����%��&��)�����
����������
����&�����2��������������������������������������������������������
��2���������)�2����������������%�����
��������������������������������������0�
"�������������&����������������������(�$�&��������������������������������
��������������������%�������)�&������������������%������������������������(�$�
�������������������������
�)��������������������%����0�$��������%���������&���
������������22�������
������������������)�����������4���&�������������%���������
����������
0�"�����������������)����������������������������������%�����
���������������2����������������������������������������)������������2���������2�
���$�2�������&��������2��2���������������%���2�����&������)������������������
��&�4�������������0�"�������&��������)��������������������;'����
��)���������
���8:8������B���2������2������)������������8:890�$��������������������2���
���������������&�����������2������%���2�����������)������0�

�

Page 18



�
�
�

�

�
���H���

��������	
������������������������	���������	��	��	���������������������

�

������������������������������������2���������)����������������������2��������
�������;'0�$�������2�������������������������%����������;'������%�������
��������������B;�����&�������@��������&�����&��������������?�������0����&���
�����)����%���������������������������
��������������&����2����������2����)�������
)�����0�
�
.������������������&��������)�������������������������)����
������%������������
���������������������������������������������&��������%���������������'����
�����
2��2��������������������&���������������&�)��0�
�
�����������$�%���������������&����������)�����������
��������)��������������
�����%���������������&������������������2�������)�����������&�����������������
�
����)������)���������&�0�#�������)����)������
���%������������������������%��
������)����������I2����������������������������4�������2����������&����I2�������������
�������������������
40�
�
������2��������������������������������'����
�����������������)���������&����
����������������0�#�������%�������&����I������4���������������&���������������
�)����������������������0�#�&�%������������
���������&�����?���������)�����������
�������&���������2������2��2���������������������������0�#�����������������
��2������������������������B;�)�������&�������%���������������������������)���
����������������%����������
0����&���%����������������&�������������������%�����
��%������0�$����������2�������������&�;'���%��������2��2���������7�������
�
B���2��������&���������%������������������
0�#���������&����������������
���������;'�������������������������������������������
���2��
�������&������
��
������������0�
#��&������������2��2������)����������������������������������������������������
�)�������������������������������2���������
�����22�
�)���B���2�������
��)���������
&�����&����������������������������������2������������0�
!�����
�����&���2���������������������������������������&�������
���&�����������
�����
����&����&�����)����������������&�����
�������������������������������
2�����%����������)���������&�0�
�
"�����
���������&�������������������&��������������������������2���������
&����I������4�&����I����������
4�&�������2�����
��������'����
�����������)������
��������&��0�#�����������������������2�������������&���)��������������������
�����������������0�"�����%��������������%���������&��������2����������%���0��
;2�����%���������������&�����������!���8A��*�������9���

�
�������8��
"���)����&�����������&���2��2������
������������$�%������������������
�
�����������#�����0�
�
I�����������	��������������������������������������
�����������		����������)��
������������������	���$
�������������������������
�����	���*�"���	��
���
���
��*�����������.����	������������������������
����������*���
�����	����	���
	�

�����	���
��
	����������������	�����
��	��������������
�,������"�
�����		�
���������������,�����
�,	���
���������
������������
��������
		����������04�
�
�����������$�%�����������������������������������������#�������������������)�
����������������%�����������������2�����������������������0�
�

Page 19



�
�
�

�

�
���6���

��������	
������������������������	���������	��	��	���������������������

�

����������������������������������&��������)������������&���&����������������
&���������������������������������������������������������&��������2��2���
&����%�������������������������������)��������������������
�������)�
��������������0�#��&����&���������������&������������
��%���9���������B;�
���������������������������&���&����%��
�������������������������������������
&���%��
�����������������2��2������������������������������������������������
�
�������������&��������B;0�"�����&�������
�B;�������������������������&���
�������%����������������������������������
�&��������
���%���&����������%������
���
������������������22��2������
0��
�
#��2��2������������������&�����&�������������
������������(������&�����
&������������������)����&���������������&������3�
�
O�����������	�
	����
		�����������*�������������*����
���		�
����
�������)��
/
����
	�������������������������
���������		��
*�����������������
����������'�
����������	�0P��
�
�����������$�%�������2��2������)������������������������������&�����22
����
����2��������������������������)�����������������������������%���������&�����
&���������������0�
�
�������������������)����&������������)���
���22����������������0��
�
*����������%������@��2����)�&��������
������������)����������&��������������
������������������������������������
�������2��������������������������2�����0�
"��
�����������������������������2�����������������������&�������������������
����2���������)���%������������������������������@���������0�*��������������
��)�����������������������������������
�����������������������������������
&����������������������2���������)���2�����������������������������2�����0�
�
*�����������������������������������������)�������)�����������������������
�����2��2�������2�������0�"��������������&�����)���������������������������
���&������2��2����������������������%��&�������������I����40�"���+������
����������������������������������������������������������������������
��)��������������������������>�������������������0�"�����������������������
������������2�����������&����������������������&���2����������������������
�
2����������������������������������������������2������������0�*��������������
��)����������������������������������������&�����������2����������������2����
������������2����2������)�������&��������������������������@���0��
�
-���������������2�����������������)���&��������������������������2�������
����������&�������������������������������������&�����&��������
�
����������������������>�����2����0��
�
-��������������2�����)��������@2�������������2��%����������&�����������
��������2��2����)���))����������������������
�)����������������%�����
��������������
��&��������������������������0��
�
*����������?������������������������������������������������������&�������
���������������������������������������������������������������������������
��������&������������������������2����������2��������������������0�"�����������
���������
����������������������%��
��������������������&�����������2����������
���&����������������&����������������0��

Page 20



�
�
�

�

�
���A���

��������	
������������������������	���������	��	��	���������������������

�

�
"�����
������������������������������#�����
�+�)���
�����)���������22����)���
������
�������,�2��
���
��������������������������������������������
��������������������������!�������������������%����&��������������������
��%�����
0�$������������))����������2��������)���������������������������0�
�
������������������������������������#��������?����������������������2����
����������2���������������&�����&���������)������������������������������
��2��0�
�
�����������$�%��������������������)����������?�����
�����&�������������������
����)�����������������2���������@2��������0�
�
;2�����%���������������&���������������������
0�
�
�������90��
�
�
"���)����&�����������&���2��2������
����������������������������������
�
�����������.����������
�
&�����������	��������������
�������������
�����
�������
,�������
����������
��������������
����������
��*���������������	�
�������	����
�
�����������	���	��*�����
��������������
����*���������!����*�"�������
�������������
��������������������,�����������*������
�
�����������	���������
�"����	������������
���0�
����
��
�������
�	�����������
��
�"�
�����������	��
���	���������1
���2�3���
�
�����������	�����������������
������4��������������������
����������
		���������
�
5���
��
���������������
�������
��
��������������������������������������
��6�������������������		�������������������
����������������������
�
�����������	������������������������
��������
����������������4���������
������������		������
�����������7�8�����
�5���
�����3722�����
����,�
��
�*�����"�������
��
������������0�����
���� ��*�����0�
���������������	�
�����
�����������
���
���9���$��
����������4������������������"���������������
 ���������2�3�4�
�
��������������������������������������������������������������������7����������
�����������8::8������������
�8:�0�*��������������&���&������������7��������&
���
����������������)���������������%���������%����������������������������
+�����������������������)��������������2������������)��&����������������������
�������2��������������
����0�#����)����������������������������������&���������
������2�����&�����������)����������2��2���������������������������������
���������%��)��������)������������������6�20�0������0�,��2����������������������
&�������%�������%������))��������))��������22�����������2��)������������%��%���
�������������������������>����������������������������������������2�������0�#��)����
�������������������������������������2��)�����������������������������������
��2���������%���)����������������������2����������������������22�
��������
+������������������0�#��&������)���������������?�����
��)�����������������
&����������2��%����
���%������&��������������2��%��������������%��������

Page 21



�
�
�

�

�
���5���

��������	
������������������������	���������	��	��	���������������������

�

���������0�#���������������������������!������
����������������������
�����������������
�����������)�����2������������������������������&��������
��������������������0�#����%��������������������������������������&�����))������
�������������������������������%����������������������������������������
�������4�2�����0�"������������������%��&��)���������������������������
�������������)�������+�������������������&�������������)������������%��������
2��)�������������������������������&�����)��������������0�
�
�����������.�����������2�����������������)�����������0�#��)�������&�����2�������
��������������&�������������������������������)�����2�������2����������
�������
&���&�����������������
0�#��&���2����������������������������������������
�
����������������������������������������������
���������������&��������2������
2���������������2�����0��#��&�����������������������������������&������
���������������%���������������������!����
��%����������0�#���������2������������
��%��&�����������������&�+���������2��������&������%���2�����������2�������)���
�22��%����
�������������������0������������������)�������&������������%��)���
��������
0�
�
�������������������)����&�����������&������22����%���)�����������0����&���
���������������&����������)���������������&�������%����������������)���
2����������������2���������������������������������������������������22����0�*�
�������?����������&���������2��
�������������%����������2��
����������))�)���
2���������%��������&�������������@�����������%��%�������))���������%���������
�%���������������)�����+������������������0��*�����������������������������
���������������&���������+�����������������������������&�������&��������)���
������������0�#�&�%������������������2��������������������������
�����
��%��2����������%���)��&������������������������������)����
����&���������&�����
����������������)�������0�-����������������������������2����2��������������
��������������%����6�2���������������)���������������������������%��)��&����
2������������
���������������(�$���������&�����������������������������0��
�
����������������2������������������������������������)�����������22���0�#��
���)�������������2��
����������%�����������������������))�)���2���������%����
��&�%�����������&�����������������������������������)������������������������
��%���������������������������2��
���)���������))��������������*������+��%�����
��������������������������)��������0�#��������������������������������%������
������)����������0�#����)����������������������)���������2�2���&��������������
�����������&���������������������))��������������������%��������������&����������
������))����������������������
����������&������������������
���������0��-%���������
)����������%���������%�����������&���������������������2�����������
�����2�����
��)����������������������&�����22
�������)���������������&��������
�������������&����������������������2�����)��������%��&0�
�
;2�����%������������������&���������������������
0�
�

���� ��������;������������
,������$2�������������)�����$2���������	���������*�����������2�����������
2����������������������������������������������$2��������0�"�����
�������2����
����2��������&�����&���������������������)����������������������������������
�������4��2��������������0�
�
�
�

Page 22



�
�
�

�

�
���1���

��������	
������������������������	���������	��	��	���������������������

�

�
�

������	
����
�/'��%'��

�

Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 24



��������	�
��������
��
�

������������������
��
�


�� ���������������������������� ������!������"�����#$������������������
����������% ��������� ����& �����

� �����������	
�	����
��������������������
�������������������
��������������
�����

����������������
�
��������������������������
����	�������	�����
������
�������������	�
�����
�	�������������������
�
�	�����
�����������
�����
	�������������
������ 	�����	���!����	� �������������	�������������
"	��������	�
�����������
������
�����
���������	��������������������

�������
�����#�
"	���
���
�����������$�����������������

%�	��$��������������������
���������
�	��&�������'�����(����
��������!������� �����������
�����	������#�
�

� '��(����������� ������!������"�����#�
� ��
���������'���
�
��������������������������)
������������
������	���

������������
������������������'�����
��
�������������
�	������������	�
������
��������������������������
������	��������	����
�����
	���
�����������
������
���������������
��$�������������
�����*����$����������������
�����
��������
��������������������������������������
��'��
�
�������������
��������
�������
��������	�
���

�
��
�
����������
�������������������
�����������
��������������������������

����
����������������������)
��
������������
�������	���������������	��������)
�
�������������������������	��	�
������������������������
������������'�
���
���+��������$����	�
�����������
���������������������������������������
��������
�����������
��
�
*�����������

�
����
�������
������	������)
�	�����	����,����������
������
������������
���'������-�����.%�
�
/���������0	������������������
�������������������1��
/���������0	���������������������
����������
������
����������	������	������
����������
�
�������������-������1�
/���������&��������
����������������������	������
���'�������������������
���������������	�
'����	������������������������	���������������������
������	��
����������������
��
�

�

Minute Item 6
Page 21Page 25



Page 22

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 26



   

$njl4fl1e Page 1 of 7 Last updated 07 October 2016 

 

 

Cheltenham Borough Council 

Council – 17 October 2016 

Petition against changes to the C bus route 

 

 

Accountable member Cabinet Member Development and Safety, Councillor Andrew McKinlay 

Accountable officer Managing Director Place and Economic Development, Tim Atkins 

Ward(s) affected All 

Key Decision No  

Executive summary The following petition was received by Council on 18 July 2016. 

“Proposed change in C bus route should be in consultation with bus users.” 

 

As the petition had in excess of 750 signatures it is entitled to a debate at 
Council. 

Recommendations Council are asked to decide a course of action as required by the 
Petition Scheme. 

 

Financial implications None arising from this report. 
 

Contact officer:          ,                @cheltenham.gov.uk, 01242 

Legal implications The petition must be considered in accordance with the Council’s Petition 
Scheme made pursuant to the Local Democracy, Economic Development 
and Construction Act 2009. The petition will be considered in accordance 
with the Council Procedure Rules varied in so far as necessary to comply 
with the attached Process. 

Contact officer:  Peter Lewis, Head of Legal Services 

Peter.lewis@tewkesbury.gov.uk  Tel:01684 272 012 

 

HR implications 
(including learning and 
organisational 
development)  

None arising from this report. 

Contact officer:       ,                @cheltenham.gov.uk, 01242 

Key risks No risks identified in the report. 

Agenda Item 9
Page 27



   

$njl4fl1e Page 2 of 7 Last updated 07 October 2016 

 

Corporate and 
community plan 
Implications 

 

Environmental and 
climate change 
implications 

None arising from this report.  

Property/Asset 
Implications 

 None arising from this report 

Contact officer:   David Roberts@cheltenham.gov.uk 

1. Background to the Petition Scheme 

1.1 The petition provisions in the Local Democracy, Economic Development and Construction Act 
2009 aim to address the perception nationally, as revealed in the results of the Place survey, 
that the community is unable to influence local decisions. 
 

1.2 The Council’s Petition Scheme (based on the national model scheme) is designed to ensure 
that the public has easy access to information about how to petition their local authority and 
they will know what to expect from their local authority in response.  Included within the 
Scheme is the requirement to have a full Council debate should a certain number of signatures 
be achieved. Cheltenham Borough Council has set that threshold lower than that 
recommended by the legislation at 750 signatures. 
 

1.3 The legislation also recommends a 15 minute maximum period for the debate and recognises 
that the issue may be referred to another committee where the matter is not one reserved for 
full Council. The purpose of the requirement for Council debate therefore, is not to ensure that 
the final decision relating to the petition issue is made at that Council meeting but to increase 
the transparency of the decision making process, ensuring that debates on significant petitions 
are publicised with sufficient notice to enable the petition organiser and public to attend. It also 
ensures that local people know that their views have been listened to and they have the 
opportunity to hear their local representative debate their concerns. The outcome of debates 
will depend on the subject matter of the petition.  
 

2. The petition   

2.1 The Council received a petition at its meeting on Monday 18 July 2016. The wording of the 
petition is set out in the Executive Summary of this report.  

2.2 Mrs Doreen Spiers (Friends of Springbank) and Andy Hayes (Hesters Way Partnership) were 
nominated as the petition organisers.  
 

2.3 The Council is therefore required to debate the petition for a maximum of 15 minutes in 
accordance with the Petitions Scheme approved by Council on the 13 May 2010. A process for 
dealing with a petition was produced by officers and is attached as Appendix 1 as a process to 
be followed for the debate at this meeting.  The debate should conclude with one or more 
decisions taken pursuant to the Petition Scheme as follows 
 

• taking the action requested in the petition (provided the matter is reserved to full Council 
for decision) 

• referring the matter to Cabinet or an Appropriate Cabinet Member or Committee 
(including Overview and Scrutiny) for further consideration 

• holding an inquiry into the matter 

Page 28



   

$njl4fl1e Page 3 of 7 Last updated 07 October 2016 

 

• undertaking research into the matter 

• holding a public meeting 

• holding a consultation 

• holding a meeting with petitioners 

• calling a referendum 

• writing to the petition organiser setting out our views about the request in the petition 

• taking no further action on the matter 
 

3. Officer comments 

3.1 Background 

3.2 On 1st May 2016, Stagecoach implemented changes to the route of the C Bus. Previously, this 
route served Springbank Way and the Springbank shops on a loop. See map below of the 
former route: 

 

3.3 The C route would no longer run along the length of Springbank way from the junction with 
Hesters Way Lane to the Springbank Shops. 

3.4 In mitigation, Stagecoach extended the route of the B bus, so that it now serves Pilgrove Way.  

3.5 Reasons for the change 

3.6 The change to the route was taken for commercial reasons, and as the route is not subsidised, 
there was no opportunity for the county council to influence the proposals prior to the changes 
being implemented. Stagecoach stated that the revisions were driven by the need to make 
punctuality improvements to Service C.   

3.7 In further statements, Stagecoach have explained that although the decision was not an easy 
one to make, they feel they  have calculated that most customers using the affected stops on 
Springbank Way will need to walk a maximum of 2 minutes further for their nearest bus.  In 
some cases, walking time decreases because the new route for Service B is actually closer 
than the current Service C. 

Length of C 
route no 
longer served 

New terminus 
for B Bus 

C route bus 
stop 

Page 29



   

$njl4fl1e Page 4 of 7 Last updated 07 October 2016 

 

3.8 They went onto state that they had not been delivering the levels of punctuality on Service C 
that they or their customers expect.  They cited increasing congestion (in part due to fuel price 
changes), poor traffic light priority at key junctions, parking concerns on residential streets 
(including but not exclusively at school times) that had all played a part in making journeys run 
late.  The relatively tight turn-around time between journeys (a necessity of the then route 
length) meant that small delays regularly escalated into gaps in their timetable and complaints 
from customers.  

3.9 Stagecoach had explored adding an additional vehicle to the three they used on the route, but 
stated that the service was not taking enough revenue to justify the 33% cost increase to solve 
the punctuality problem.  They had also discounted reducing the number of journeys (to give 
each bus more time) as they felt that this would lead to a reduction in the appeal of the service 
as a turn-up-and-go route, with a risk that revenue had diminshed as a result.  

3.10 Stagecoach have stated that their decision to cease serving Springbank Way was not an easy 
one, as they always seek to make positive changes to encourage growth and development.  
They feel that they found the best compromise for the majority of their customers. They have 
stated that the time saving of 2 to 3 minutes per trip would be significant enough to address the 
punctuality challenges. 

3.11 Potential Impacts on the Springbank community 

3.12 The removal of the bus service from the length of Springbank Way, however raised a number 
of concerns with local residents. Primarily these were: 

• How would elderly and infirm people be able to access local services? 

• Was an impact assessment carried out? 

• Why was there not any consultation with service users / residents? 

• Additionally whilst this is not a subsidised route, what means of an appeal or challenge do local 
residents have? 

• How will the removal of the route along Springbank Way affect the potential redevelopment of 
the Springbank shops site? 

3.13 The loss of the C route affects a 400m length of Springbank Way, where it is known that there 
are many older people living. Unfortunately, precise data for this catchment area is not 
available. Using data for the Springbank ward as whole shows the following: 

• At the 2011 Census, 7.6% of the population (501) were agred over 65 and 5.9% (386) aged 
over 75. This was slightly less than the Cheltenham average of 8.1% and 7.9% respectively. 

• 11.2% of households (313) were formed of older people living alone, compared to the 
Chetenham average of 12.8%.  

• 22% (614) of the Springbank households did not have access to a car. This was the same 
percentage as for Cheltenham as a whole.  

• There were 5.6% of the population (368) who recorded their health as being either bad or very 
bad, compared to 3.9% of the population of Cheltenham. 

• There were 7.9% of the population (522) who stated that their day to day activities were limited 
a lot, compared to 6.5% of the population of Cheltenham.  

 

Page 30



   

$njl4fl1e Page 5 of 7 Last updated 07 October 2016 

 

3.14 So whilst there are a slightly lower proportion of older people living in Springbank when 
compared to Cheltenham as a whole, there is a higher proportion of people that have bad 
health or whose ability to carry out day-to-day activities is limited.  

3.15 Stagecoach have stated that no impact assessment was carried out, norconsultation with 
users / residents. They gave 56 days notice of the changes to the Office of the Traffic 
Commissioner. 

3.16 As the service is a commercial service, the Borough Council, nor County Council have a right 
of appeal to the changes.  

3.17 It is uncertain about any impact on the proposed redevelopment of the Springbank shops.  

3.18 What has happened since? 

3.19 Since the changes have been made, Stagecoach have stated that punctuality has increased 
by 2.37% (May to August when compared to Jan to April). They are unwilling to share 
passenger numbers due to commercial reasons.  

4. Reasons for recommendations 

4.1 Council are asked to decide a course of action as required by the Petition Scheme. 

 

Report author Contact officer:  @cheltenham.gov.uk,  Tel: 01242 26 

Richard Gibson, Strategy and Engagement Manager 

Richard Gibson@cheltenham.gov.uk 

01242 235354  

Rosalind Reeves, Democratic Services Manager 
rosalind.reeves@cheltenham.gov.uk 
01242 774937 

 

Appendices 1. Risk assessment 

2. Process for dealing with a petition at council 

Background information 1. Council’s petition scheme – report to Council 13 May 2010 

 

Page 31



   

$njl4fl1e Page 6 of 7 Last updated 07 October 2016 

 

Appendix 1 

Process for dealing with petitions at Council  

The following is the recommended process to be followed for the debate of a petition at the Council 
meeting in accordance with the Council’s Petition Scheme. The Council Procedure Rules shall be 
suspended in so far as necessary to facilitate this process. 

1. The Mayor will remind members of the procedure to be followed 

2. Statement by the petition organiser  
The Mayor will invite the petitioner organiser or their representative to come to the microphone and 
speak for up to 5 minutes on the petition.  

There will be no questions and the petition organiser/their representative will take no further part in 
the proceedings.  

3. Clarification on the background information in the officer’s report 
Members will be invited to ask any questions for clarification as to the facts in the officer’s report. 

4. Statement by the relevant Cabinet Member 
The Cabinet Member whose portfolio is most relevant to the petition will be invited by the Mayor to 
speak for a maximum of 5 minutes on the subject of the petition. They may wish to refer to the 
background report from officers circulated with the papers for the meeting.   

They may also wish to propose a motion at this point; if so, the motion must be seconded. 

5. Debate by members 
Where a member has proposed a motion (which is seconded), the usual Rules of Debate (Rule 13) 
will apply. 

If there is no motion, the Mayor will invite any member who wishes to speak on the petition to address 
Council for up to a maximum of 3 minutes.  

When the 15 minutes set aside for the debate (as laid down in the Council’s Petition Scheme) is up, 
the Mayor may decide to extend the time allowed for the debate but will bring it to a close when they 
feel sufficient time has been allowed. 

6. Conclusion of Debate 

The debate should conclude with one or more decisions taken pursuant to the Petition Scheme as 
follows: 

• taking the action requested in the petition (provided the matter is reserved to full 
council for decision) 

• referring the matter to Cabinet or an Appropriate Cabinet Member or Committee 
(including Overview and Scrutiny) for further consideration 

• holding an inquiry into the matter 

• undertaking research into the matter 

• holding a public meeting 

• holding a consultation 

• holding a meeting with petitioners 

• calling a referendum 

• writing to the petition organiser setting out our views about the request in the petition 

• taking no further action on the matter 

Page 32



   

2015_06_22_COU_CCTV Page 7 of 7 Last updated 07 October 2016 

 

Risk Assessment                  Appendix 1  
 

The risk Original risk score 
(impact x likelihood) 

Managing risk 

Risk 
ref. 

Risk description Risk 
Owner 

Date 
raised 

Impact 
1-5 

Likeli- 
hood 
1-6 

Score Control Action Deadline Responsible 
officer 

Transferred to 
risk register 

 No risks identified at this 
stage until Council decide 
what action to take on the 
petition.  

          

            

            

            

            

Explanatory notes 

Impact – an assessment of the impact if the risk occurs on a scale of 1-5 (1 being least impact and 5 being major or critical) 

Likelihood – how likely is it that the risk will occur on a scale of 1-6  

(1 being almost impossible, 2 is very low, 3 is low, 4 significant,  5 high and 6 a very high probability) 

Control - Either: Reduce / Accept / Transfer to 3rd party / Close 
 

 

 
 

P
age 33



Page 34



 

   

 Page 1 of 20  

 

 

Cheltenham Borough Council 

Cabinet – 11 October 2016 

Council – 17 October 2016 

2020 Partnership Local Authority Company 

Accountable member Cabinet Member Corporate Services, Councillor Roger Whyborn 

Accountable officer Pat Pratley, Head of Paid Service 

Ward(s) affected All indirectly 

Key/Significant 
Decision 

Yes 

Executive summary Councillors will be aware that in October 2015 Council approved the 
creation of the 2020 Partnership Joint Committee (joint committee), the 
delegation of GO Shared Services (GOSS) and ICT from the date of its 
creation and, following Cabinet decisions on 9 February, the subsequent 
delegation to the joint committee, of revenues (including council tax), 
benefits and customer services. 

In October Council also delegated to the joint committee employment 
matters for all partner council staff including HR policies and procedures, 
pay and grading policy and total reward policy (including financial and non-
financial benefits).  Along with the other partner councils, CBC requested a 
further report during 2016 on the business case for a local authority 
company. 

On 30 September 2016 the joint committee met and approved a company 
structure and governance proposals.  Those proposals include for CBC to 
become a member of a support services company (limited by guarantee) 
from which it would receive GOSS and ICT.   

Having previously delegated revenues, benefits and customer services to 
the joint committee Cabinet has reviewed the position and determined to 
withdraw those services and to return them to the direct management of 
CBC, rather than commit them to the company. 

The updated business case at Appendix 2 now based on these 
arrangements shows that the support services company proposal will 
generate additional savings of £66k pa. However the option to remain as a 
conventional (s101) shared service is not a realistic one, and the alternative 
of reverting the GOSS and ICT to CBC has substantial on-costs. Whilst the 
extent of service provision through a company is less than originally 
envisaged CBC very much wishes to work in collaboration with the 2020 
Partnership where it is of mutual benefit especially in the area of ICT 
enabled service transformation.  

With regard to employment matters delegated to the joint committee these 
will remain as currently delegated until the joint committee is dissolved.  If at 
some point this needs to change a further report will be brought back to 
Council for a decision.   

Agenda Item 10
Page 35



 

   

 Page 2 of 20  

 

 

This report also explains how revenues, benefits and customer services will 
be managed when withdrawn from the joint committee and, as a related 
matter, this report also signals the Head of Paid Service’s proposals with 
regard to future arrangements for this council’s s151 officer role and 
management responsibilities. 

Recommendations in respect of the future provision of Audit and Counter 
Fraud services will be subject to a separate report to Cabinet in November 
2016 following consideration by Audit committee. 

Recommendations It is recommended that Cabinet 

1.  Approves the updated 2020 Partnership Business Case at Appendix 2 in 
so far as it relates to Cheltenham Borough Council for the delivery of 
GOSS and ICT functions. 

2.  Approves the transfer of GOSS and ICT functions as outlined in 
Schedule 2 of the Inter Authority Agreement dated 11 February 2016 to a 
local authority support services company owned by Cheltenham Borough 
Council, Cotswold District Council, Forest of Dean District Council and 
West Oxfordshire District Council. 

3.  Agrees to withdraw this authority’s revenues (including council tax), 
benefits and customer services from the 2020 Partnership Joint 
Committee with effect from 14 November 2016.  

4.  Authorises the Head of Paid Service, in consultation with the Leader, 
Cabinet Member for Corporate Services, the s151 Officer and the 
Borough Solicitor to work with the Partnership MD to finalise and 
complete the Articles of Association, Members Agreement, Contract for 
Services and  documents and to take all necessary steps to enable the 
support  service local authority company formation. 

5. Authorises the Democratic Services Manager, in consultation with the 
Borough Solicitor, to make such changes to the Constitution as are 
necessary to reflect and facilitate the implementation of the 
recommendations in this report. 

It is recommended that Council 

6.  Approves the continued designation of Paul Jones as s151 Officer in an 
interim seconded capacity until 27 March 2017 and to note the inclusion 
of the management of revenues and benefits from the date of withdrawal 
from the 2020 Joint Committee. 

7.  Appoints the Leader of the Council as this council’s member 
representative of the support services company. 

  

 

Page 36



 

   

 Page 3 of 20  

 

Financial implications As detailed in Section 8 of the report and the updated business case at 
Appendix 2: 

Business Case Cost £1.801m 
 
Share of Transformational (£0.950m) 
Challenge Award Grant 
 
Net Business Case Cost £0.851m 
 
Business Case Benefit £0.565m pa 
 
Costs of the programme to date are included in the table above and have 
been fully funded by the Government’s Transformation Challenge Award 
Grant.   
 

The council’s approved Medium Term Financial Strategy includes £0.900m 
of funding for the 2020 Programme. The revised business case ‘local’ cost 
for this council is £0.851m which covers our share of expert professional 
advice, programme management and project support, ICT including 
telephony and the cost of transformational change. 

Contact officer: Paul Jones, Head of Finance GOSS 
paul.jones@cheltenham.gov.uk,  01242 775154 

Page 37



 

   

 Page 4 of 20  

 

Legal implications The new support services company is a local authority company limited by 
guarantee which complies with Regulation 12(4) Public Contracts 
Regulations 2015. This means that the authority may transfer services to it 
for delivery without the need to comply with the EU procurement 
legislation. 

Legal Documentation 

A key legal document is the Members Agreement (MA) (equivalent to a 
Shareholder Agreement) which sets out the relationship between the 
owners of the company and the company itself. This document includes, 
but is not limited to, the matters which will be reserved to the 
Members/Owners for decision, known as reserved matters, and these are 
set out in paragraph 4.6 of this report. 

A further key document is the Articles of Association. This document will 
set out the objects of the company and other procedural matters such as 
the process for decision making by the Board of Directors e.g. Chair, 
quorum, use of written resolutions and the ability to hold meetings 
remotely. 

The delivery of services from the new company to the authority will be set 
out in a contract for services/SLA. This agreement normally sets out the 
level of service provision, performance management and cost. 

The legal documentation referred to above is not available for 
consideration at the time of this report but some agreed principles are set 
out in paragraph 3.3 (Term) paragraph 4 and paragraph 5 (Service 
provision) below. The legal documentation will, therefore, be dealt with in 
accordance with the proposed delegated authority to the Head of Paid 
Service. 

In addition there will be a number of consequential matters arising such as 
the withdrawal of the revenues, benefits and customer services from the 
joint committee which will also be dealt with under the proposed 
delegation. 

Contact officer:  Shirin Wotherspoon, Head of Law (Commercial)   
shirin.wotherspoon@tewkesbury.gov.uk, 01684 272017 

Page 38



 

   

 Page 5 of 20  

 

HR implications 
(including learning and 
organisational 
development) 

There are no HR implications arising from the updated 2020 Partnership 
Business Case so far as it relates to Cheltenham Borough Council for the 
delivery of GOSS and ICT functions. The officers who deliver these 
services are employees of Cotswold District Council and Forest of Dean 
District Council respectively.  

The HR implications for this council following from the withdrawal of 
Revenues and Benefits and Customer Services from the 2020 Joint 
Committee are as follows:- 

a) Officers of these services employed by CBC will return to 

managerial direction of this council.  

b) Revenues and Benefits Services will report to the council’s 

designated Section 151 Officer 

c) Customer Services will report to the Director Resources and 

Special Projects 

Contact officer: Julie McCarthy, HR Manager GOSS                        
julie.mccarthy@cheltenham.gov.uk, 01242 264355 

Key risks The key risk for CBC arises from a situation where it is not agreed that it 
will become a member of a support service company from which it would 
receive the services provided by GOSS and ICT.   

A further risk relates to the ability to find further savings to replace those 
foregone through the withdrawal of revenues, benefits and customer 
services from the joint committee. 

Corporate and 
community plan 
Implications 

Approval of the recommendations will deliver the corporate plan objective 
for 2016/17 VFM1 – we will work with our 2020 partners to implement 
agreed shared services from April 2016 and specifically deliver the 
milestone - to consider a business case for a local authority company 
governance model. 

Environmental and 
climate change 
implications 

None arising from this report 

Property/Asset 
Implications 

Savings resulting from the rationalisation of accommodation through 
sharing of staff are likely to be less with limited involvement in the 
partnership. 

Contact officer: David Roberts, Head of Property Services 
david.roberts@cheltenham.gov.uk, 01242 774151 

  

Page 39



 

   

 Page 6 of 20  

 

1. Background 

1.1 Councillors will be aware that the 2020 Partnership (the partnership) comprises Cheltenham 
Borough Council (CBC), Cotswold District Council (CDC), West Oxfordshire District Council 
(WODC) and Forest of Dean District Council (FoDDC).  The partnership ambition is 
“A number of councils, retaining their independence and identities, but working together and 
sharing resources to maximise mutual benefit leading to more efficient, effective delivery of local 
services”. 

1.2 In October 2015 CBC approved the creation of the 2020 Partnership Joint Committee (joint 
committee), the delegation of GO Shared Services (GOSS) (finance, HR, internal audit, 
procurement, counter fraud) and ICT from the date of its creation and the subsequent delegation 
of revenues (including council tax), benefits and customer services following Cabinet decisions on 
9 February 2016.   

1.3 Councillors will also be aware that last October this council, along with the other partner councils, 
delegated to the joint committee employment matters including HR policies and procedures, pay 
and grading policy and total reward policy (including financial and non-financial benefits). 

1.4 Along with the other partner councils, CBC requested a further report during 2016 on the business 
case for a local authority company or alternatively, continuation of the joint committee. 

1.5 On 30 September 2016 the joint committee met and approved a company structure comprising 
three local authority companies together with governance proposals and agreed that CBC 
become a member of the shared services local authority company which would provide GOSS 
and ICT to CBC.   

1.6 Having approved the delegation of revenues and benefits and customer services to the joint 
committee earlier this year the Cabinet has reviewed that position and concluded that the public is 
better served by withdrawing those services from the joint committee and to returning them to be 
directly managed by CBC, rather than commit them to the company. 

2. Initial company set up 

2.1 The joint committee has approved a company structure (Appendix 2 – figure 8.1) comprising of 
three teckal companies limited by guarantee (CLG).   

2.2 Unlike a company limited by shares, a CLG has no share capital or shareholders, instead it has 
“members” who undertake to contribute a nominal amount towards any shortfall in the company’s 
assets to settle its debts in the event of it being wound up.   

2.3 The 2020 programme has obtained specialist tax and legal advice as to the most appropriate 
legal form for the partnership companies and it is as a result of that advice that CLGs are being 
recommended. 

2.4 The companies, their members and primary purpose will be: 

Support Services Company 

Members CBC, FoDDC, CDC, WODC 

Primary purpose: to directly provide support services to members with limited trading (less than 
20%) with other bodies/companies.  This company intends to also provide services to Ubico Ltd, 
Cheltenham Borough Homes, The Cheltenham Trust.  

 

 

Page 40



 

   

 Page 7 of 20  

 

Regulatory Services Company 

Members FoDDC, CDC, WODC  

Primary purpose: to directly provide regulatory services to its members with limited trading (less 
than 20%) with other bodies/companies 

Co-ordinary Company 

Members FoDDC, CDC, WODC 

Primary Purpose: to directly provide core-co-ordinating services i.e. strategic advice, 
management services, commissioning (and other specific services) to its members with no 
significant trading with other bodies/companies. 

2.5 CBC will only be a member of the support services company because it is being recommended 
that it only receives services from GOSS and ICT.  

3. Transfer of services to the companies 

3.1 The other partner councils have agreed that all their staff will transfer to one of the three 
companies.  No CBC staff will transfer because neither GOSS nor ICT staff are CBC employees 
having transferred under the principles of TUPE (Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of 
Employment) Regulations 2006 to those shared services when they were originally established. 

3.2 The updated business case has been predicated on the companies being established by April 
2017, all companies operational during 2017-18 with GOSS and ICT transferring to the support 
services company during that year. 

3.3 Contract duration 

3.3.1 There are a number of factors affecting the potential duration of contracts between the companies 
and the member councils.  Initially it is proposed that the contract durations are sufficient to 
enable the new companies to become established and to transform service delivery.  Contract 
duration is also an important consideration with regard to the potential risk around pension exit 
valuation costs.  Actuarial advice has been received that longer term contracts provide more 
certainty that a cessation valuation will not apply as active members of the pension scheme will 
remain. 

3.3.2 The joint committee has endorsed a contract period for the support service company of 5 years 
with an opportunity to extend for two further periods each of 4 years. 

4. Leaders’ Statement 

4.1 The partnership has developed an overarching Leaders’ Statement, which was approved by the 
Joint Committee on 30 September, which outlines a set of principles on which the partnership will 
operate, as follows: 

“We have a strong track record of over three years of being committed to working collaboratively 
in pursuit of our agreed shared vision as approved by all four councils in 2014: 

 
“A number of councils, retaining their independence and identity but working together and sharing 
resources to maximise mutual benefit, leading to more efficient, effective delivery of local 
services.” 

 
 
 
 

Page 41



 

   

 Page 8 of 20  

 

In October 2014, we all agreed a further set of desired outcomes that would govern our work 
going forward.  These are: 
 
• Financial - respond to current and future pressure 
• Efficiency - value for money 
• Resilience – increase pool of expertise, add capacity 
• Impact - better outcomes for our communities 
• Democracy –  champion local needs 

 
As the partnership continues to develop there have already been some notable early benefits. 
Cashable savings to date are on profile with savings already delivered during 2015/16 and 
2016/17 approaching £2.5 million. There have also been some significant non-cashable benefits 
including: 
  
• Improved knowledge sharing and learning  
• Increased resilience  
• More stable and improved technology  
• Smarter working practices introduced 
• Reduced office space resulting in some spaces being re-let 
• More consistent approach to HR with policies and procedures aligned 
• Future costs avoided 

 
During that time we have worked together under different governance arrangements and despite 
some differences in approach and views on how best to achieve the vision and outcomes we 
have proceeded through a process of engagement, open discussion and debate to find solutions 
that meet individual requirements. 

 
Following expert legal, tax and pension advice we are proposing to establish a group of three 
local authority owned Companies Limited by Guarantee (Appendix A) which are Public Bodies.  
We believe that this structure provides the appropriate balance between, delivering a consistent 
approach across the “common core” organisational functions such as HR policy, Finance policy, 
Audit, ICT strategy and Customer Services Strategy; delivering the benefits of operating under a 
company model; and recognising the commercial trading opportunities and management of risks 
in the future. 

 
Whilst we have developed a model that is designed to be flexible for the future, we are not 
planning for, or considering any circumstances at this moment in time that might result in 
changes to this structure.   Neither can we predict what external factors or new opportunities 
might cause us to re-consider this in the future.  Should something change in the future that might 
cause us to collectively consider changes to the company structures it will be necessary to go 
through a thorough process, building upon our trusting relationships between partners,  prior to 
shareholders being asked to approve any such proposals. 

 
It is expected that any such process would involve discussions with the Shareholder 
Representative Board who would be extensively briefed by the Board of Directors on the reasons 
for any proposed changes and the benefits (measured against the outcomes) of any such 
changes.  As a fundamental principle no changes will be made that would be detrimental to one 
or more of the partners even if of benefit to others.  Furthermore, we will, as we have in the past, 
continue to work collaboratively to seek the agreement of all of the Partner Councils.   

 
The Partnership has a demonstrable track record of being open and transparent and will continue 
to do so.  As Public Bodies, the Companies will be required to meet their legal transparency 
requirements (such as responding to Freedom of Information requests).  We would further 
anticipate that as appropriate, the company will make relevant information available to member 
Councillors to assist them in undertaking their democratic roles.   

 

Page 42



 

   

 Page 9 of 20  

 

5. Governance 

5.1 The Articles of Association and Member Agreement (MA) will be developed over the coming 
months and will set out the framework for how the company(ies) will be controlled by and 
accountable to the member councils.  The joint committee approved the following key principles 
with regard to the company(ies) governance structure. 

5.2 Member representative 

5.2.1 The Leader of each council will be the member representative for their council responsible for 
taking member decisions on behalf of their council.  At CBC the Constitution allows for the leader 
to delegate this responsibility to any other member of Cabinet should he choose to do so. 

5.3 Voting rights 

5.3.1 It is proposed that each company is established with equal membership and equal voting rights. 

5.4 Members representatives board 

5.4.1 As well as the companies’ Annual General Meetings to which the member representatives are 
invited, it is proposed to introduce a Members Representatives Board that will meet regularly to 
provide a forum for discussion of common areas of company business such as reserve matter 
decisions.  This type of forum is not unfamiliar as it is along similar lines to the Shareholder Forum 
that CBC introduced when it reviewed the governance arrangements for Gloucestershire Airport 
Ltd.  That particular forum has proved an extremely beneficial informal addition to the governance 
arrangements. 

5.5 Reserved matters 

5.5.1 The joint committee has considered those company decisions which it deems should be reserved 
decisions and the total member votes required to provide consent.  These reserved matters are 
shown in the table below: 

1 Permitting the registration of any additional Members of the 

Company.   

By not less 

than 75% 

2 Adopting or amending the Business Plan in respect of each 

Financial Year.  

By not less 

than 75% 

3 Forming any subsidiary or acquiring shares in any other company 

or participating in any partnership or joint venture (incorporated 

or not).  

By not less 

than 75% 

4 Amalgamating or merging with any other company or business 

undertaking.  

By not less 

than 75%  

5 Entering into any arrangement, contract or transaction with 

either a capital or revenue value over £500,000 which is not 

included in the current approved Business Plan.  

By not less 

than 75% 

6 Agreeing the appointment and the appointment terms (including 

any remuneration terms) of all directors of the Company other 

than Shareholder Appointed Non-Executive Directors.  

By not less 

than 75% 

7 Agreeing any remuneration terms for Shareholder Appointed 

Non-Executive Directors.  

By not less 

than 75%  

Page 43



 

   

 Page 10 of 20  

 

 

 

5.5.2 The reserved matters take account of the current constitution of the joint committee.  Some 
reserved matters are considered special resolutions under company law and therefore require a 
75% majority vote.   

5.5.3 Further protections will be built into the MA, for example, the process through which new 
members would be considered (including presentation of a business plan.)  The Leaders’ 
Statement above captures the fundamental principle that no changes will be made to the 
company structure that would be detrimental to one or more of the partners even if of benefit to 
others.  The leaders’ statement also captures the principle of the companies being open and 
transparent, including but not limited to the requirement to respond to Freedom of Information 
requests; also that the company will make relevant information available to member Councillors to 
enable them to undertake their roles. 

5.5.4 It is recognised that it may be preferable to try and reach unanimous decisions on some member 
reserved matters.  Therefore, in developing the detailed legal documentation, it is proposed that 
consideration be given to a deferral process protocol similar to that already established as part of 
the 2020 Joint Committee Constitution.   

6. Company directors 

6.1 Directors control the operation and management of the company subject to the control that the 
members have under the Members’ agreement. 

6.2 Executive directors 

6.2.1 Executive directors are responsible for operational matters and are normally employees of the 
company and they will have employment contracts with the company(ies).  The required skills and 
experience of executive directors will be established as part of the terms and conditions of their 
employment.  The joint committee has proposed that the appointment of executive directors is a 
reserved matter - see above. 

6.2.2 Clear standards of behaviour, ethical walls policy and escalation procedures to deal with potential 
conflicts of interest will be developed and introduced.  These safeguards will be particularly 
important for those individuals who may have concerns about personal conflicts of interest. 

6.2.3 It is proposed that initial appointments to the Companies at establishment will be from existing 
council resources where possible. 

6.2.4 It is expected that when a future vacancy occurs the appointment of the executive director(s) 
would be through open external competition. 

6.2.5 It is proposed that the Partnership Managing Director brings forward draft proposals for the 
number of directors to be appointed to the boards of the companies. 

 

8 Increasing, reducing, sub-dividing, consolidating, re-

denominating, cancelling, purchasing or redeeming any of the 

capital of, or allotting or issuing any share of the ownership or 

other securities in the capital of, the Company. 

By not less 

than 75%  

9 Altering any rights attaching to any class of ownership in the 

capital of the Company, or creating any option, warrant or any 

other right to acquire or subscribe for any share of ownership or 

other securities in the capital of the Company. 

By not less 

than 75%  

Page 44



 

   

 Page 11 of 20  

 

6.3 Non-executive directors 

6.3.1 The joint committee has proposed that each member council will have the right to appoint a 
suitable non-executive director of the company.  CBC is advised that this right can be exercised 
individually or collectively by other partner councils, ie, two or more member councils may agree 
to the appointment of the same non-executive director. However CBC will appoint a single non-
executive director on its behalf, who is expected to be an elected member of this council. 

6.3.2 Candidates for the roles of non-executive directors will be subject to formal terms of appointment 
and be subject to a rigorous process to ensure that they meet minimum level of skills and 
experience required to undertake the roles.  This proposal is similar to that recommended and 
enacted by CBC when appointing the first board of trustees to The Cheltenham Trust and in more 
recent times the external appointment of the chair and vice-chair of Gloucestershire Airport Ltd. 

6.3.3 For CBC, this appointment will be made in accordance with the usual process, namely, by the 
Leader if all Group Leaders agree (otherwise it will be a council decision) 

6.3.4 Subject to the duty to the company as a Director, the authority appointed Director can liaise with 
and brief their authority as required prior to and following Board meetings.  

6.4 Independent non-executive director 

6.4.1 The joint committee felt it was important to jointly appoint one independent non-executive director 
to each board of directors. It may be the case that the independent director is chair of more than 
one of the companies. 

7. Other Matters Covered in the Leaders’ Statement 

7.1 In addition to the matters pertaining to governance, directors, and company decision making the 
Leaders’ Statement also provides for the following: 

 
7.2 Service Performance 

7.2.1 Current service plans and service levels are used for the service specifications for the companies. 

7.2.2 Core service specifications and standards will be established. Additional services and standards 
can be specified at additional cost. 

7.2.3 Partnership Board meetings are held between the Companies and relevant Service Portfolio 
Holder(s). 

7.2.4 Each council has the right to summon a Company Director (or an appropriate substitute) to 
account to Overview & Scrutiny Committee. 

7.3 Advice, Decisions and Timescales 

7.3.1 It is considered that the external legal and tax advice already received is sufficient to enable the 
councils to make the decision to establish the companies. 

7.3.2 It is proposed that any subsequent decisions necessary to implement the company model should 
be delegated to each council’s Head of Paid Service in consultation with the Leader of the 
Council, Cabinet Member (Corporate services), S151 Officer, Monitoring Officer and the 
Partnership Managing Director.  

7.3.3 Transfer of services to the companies will take place by autumn 2017. 

 

Page 45



 

   

 Page 12 of 20  

 

7.4 Staffing Matters 

7.4.1 It is expected that when the company(ies) are established they will agree to Trade Union 
recognition. 

7.4.2 It is proposed that the company(ies) apply to be an admitted body of the appropriate local 
government pension schemes with a closed scheme for existing shareholder council employees 
and also to provide a stakeholder pension scheme for new employees. 

7.4.3 It is therefore proposed that the company(ies) will operate a total reward approach to reward and 
recognition for company employees 

7.5 Exit Arrangements 

7.5.1 The principle of withdrawal with suitable notice at the cost of the exiting party is adopted. 

7.5.2 Service contracts will specify the notice period to end a contract and any conditions. 

7.5.3 The members’ agreement will specify the notice any conditions concerning the withdrawal from 
the company and any disposal or handing back of shares. 

8. Statutory Officers 

8.1 Each council is obliged under legislation to have independent advice from statutory officers, 
namely the monitoring officer, s151 officer and the head of paid service.  CBC’s s151 officer is 
Paul Jones.  Paul is an employee of CDC and has a shared s151 role.  Paul is the permanent 
s151 officer for FoDDC and is CBC’s s151 officer under an interim secondment arrangement.   

8.2 Statutory officers can either be employed by a council, or councils, and be seconded to the 
company(ies) or employed by the council(s) or company(ies) under joint employment contracts.  

9. Withdrawal of revenues and benefits and customer services 

9.1 Whilst Cabinet approved the delegation of revenues, benefits and customer services to the joint 
committee on 9 February the intention now after review is to withdraw these services from the 
joint committee and return them to direct management of the council. 
 

9.2 Cabinet is mindful that this proposed change has made it an unsettling and difficult time for the 
staff involved and also the 2020 partners in terms of giving clarity on the direction of travel.  
Cabinet is also mindful that it approved a transformation project for the Regulatory and 
Environmental Services Directorate.  As that project has begun to take shape the customer 
service transformation element, to bring about a “whole council” approach, has become more 
apparent and of significance.  Cabinet also notes that services with similar synergies are being 
provided by CBH in some of its customer facing services. Importantly Cabinet’s view is that 
customer facing services do not lend themselves to shared management with other councils, due 
to the great sensitivity of these services, and high risk of reputational damage to the council, if 
services are not locally managed. Cabinet has concluded therefore that it is in the public’s best 
interests that they are directly delivered at this time. 

 
9.3 However, collaborative working with the 2020 partnership is still of great importance particularly 

with regard to ICT infrastructure investment, investment in new technologies including telephony 
and customer relationship management systems.  Access to knowledgeable and skilled IT 
professionals, together with investment in technology, have a key role to play in service 
transformation, eg REST, as well as levering benefit from economies of scale through shared 
procurement. As such, the council will continue to work with the partnership to develop a shared 
Customer Access Strategy to support the transformation of customer services, recognising that 

Page 46



 

   

 Page 13 of 20  

 

any differing requirements will incur additional costs and may potentially impact on flexibility. 
 
9.4 In terms of savings, whilst aware that the current 2017-18 Medium Term Financial Strategy 

(MTFS) savings target of £159k pa from these services was achievable, the view of Cabinet is 
that from a strategic standpoint it is not a saving that they feel it is in the best interests of the 
authority to take. 
 

9.5 Cabinet has carried out a fundamental review of the council’s MTFS with the objective not only of 
setting a balanced budget for 2017-18 but also ensuring the future financial stability of the 
authority.  A separate report outlining the Cabinet’s updated budget strategy is to be considered 
at this Cabinet meeting which includes proposals to achieve the savings foregone as part of the 
2017-18 budget setting process. 

 

10. 2020 Partnership Updated Business Case and financial implications 

10.1 The overall updated business case for the partnership moving into a teckal company is attached 
at Appendix 2.  

10.2 The updated overall business case related to ICT and GOSS being included in the proposed 
support services company is shown in Appendix 2.  A comparison of the updated overall business 
case financial projections with the business case projection at October 2015, i.e. based on the 
now more limited CBC involvement, is contained in tables 9.1 and 9.2. 

10.3 A high level summary of the revised costs and benefits, extracted from the overall business case 
which relates to CBC, is summarised below. 

10.4 Programme costs have remained at circa £10.14m. As a result of the council’s more limited 
exposure to the partnership, the share of programme costs has reduced from £2.173m to £1.8m, 
a reduction of £372k. Many of the costs of the programme are either already spent e.g. tax and 
actuarial advice and programme management including reimbursing CBC for the lead 
commissioner role support to the programme; funding of programme transformation costs to date 
(including CBC’s deletion of the post of Chief Executive) and the infrastructure to support the Joint 
Committee arrangements; or are required to fund future collaborative work streams e.g. ICT 
(business systems development/replacement) and customer service infrastructure improvements. 

10.5 The overall business case savings have been updated to reflect the savings generated by moving 
from the Joint Committee to the teckal companies with CBC’s now proposed involvement. The 
overall cumulative savings are now estimated at £41m or £5.571m annually, over a 10 year 
period. The council’s share of the additional savings will be limited to those which arise from 
moving GOSS and ICT into a teckal company and savings arising from audit proposals, a total of 
£66k annually. The proposals for the Audit Service are subject to a future report to Cabinet.  
 

10.6 The business case for Cheltenham moving GOSS and ICT into the teckal company is now 
primarily based on the avoidance of the cost of not doing so. A separate piece of work was 
commissioned by Activist to establish the cost and impact of this which looked at a range of 
options. The cost of one of the options i.e. withdrawing GOSS and ICT and delivering in house 
services would add an additional £360k per annum on top of the existing annual cost of services 
and would require c£2.18M of one-off costs to re-establish separate ICT infrastructure. This is 
likely to result in the risk of reputational damage; impact on other work e.g. delivery of other key 
council projects; negative impact on staff morale as well as a reduction in performance during any 
transition which may not return to previous levels. 

 

 

Page 47



 

   

 Page 14 of 20  

 

11. Managerial and financial implications of withdrawing revenues and benefits 
and customer services 
 

11.1 When Cabinet and Council agreed to create the joint committee last October the report contained 
a “package” of matters including a review of this council’s senior management structure together 
with savings in 2016-17 of £150.9Kpa.  The proposal to delegate revenues, benefits and 
customer services to the joint committee had the benefit of freeing up the capacity within the 
executive board to enable greater focus on the delivery of key projects. 

11.2 The withdrawal of these services from the joint committee requires their management to be 
provided for from the date of withdrawal.  In considering the future management arrangements 
one of the key objectives has been not to add further significant recurring cost to the 2016-17 
base budget and to lessen the impact, as far as possible, on the capacity of the executive board. 

11.3 Revenues and Benefits and the s151 Officer 

11.3.1 Members will be aware that on 22 June 2015 Council recommended that the then Deputy s151 
officer, Paul Jones, be designated on an interim secondment basis to the role of s151 officer.  The 
cost of this secondment is being met from government transformation challenge funding with the 
ongoing costs built in to the updated 2020 partnership business case. 
 

11.3.2 It is necessary for members to be aware of the views of the Head of Paid Service on the future 
provision of this council’s s151 officer role in light of her proposals with regard to management of 
revenues and benefits when they are withdrawn from the joint committee. 

11.3.3 Prior to the services being delegated they were managed by the s151 officer.  The nature of the 
services means that there are natural synergies with the finance and s151 officer role, particularly 
with regard to responsibility for the Collection Fund, determining the local council tax setting 
scheme, business rates retention etc.  These accountabilities now fall to the current s151 officer, 
Paul Jones, and thinking ahead to the reform of local government finance by 2020, the 
relationship between these services and finance will be particularly important over the next few 
years. 

11.3.4 The Head of Paid Service’s view is that the secondment of Paul Jones as s151 officer has worked 
extremely well and therefore recommends to council that this designation continues, in an interim 
seconded capacity, until 23 March 2017.  The Head of Paid Service intends to vary the current 
secondment agreement to allow Paul Jones to line manage the revenues and benefits service 
from the date of withdrawal of those services from the 2020 Joint Committee.  

11.3.5 The Appointments and Remuneration Committee has been briefed on this proposal at its meeting 
on 3 October.  On the basis that the continued interim arrangements have proved satisfactory the 
Head of Paid Service has indicated that it would be her intention to present a report to the 
Appointments and Remuneration Committee on 27 February 2017 and, subject to agreement, 
recommend the appointment of Paul Jones to the role of s151 Officer and that Council approve 
the designation at its meeting on 27 March 2017.   

11.4 Customer Services 

11.4.1 Whether customer services remained in the joint committee, and was subsequently delivered by a 
local authority company or not, there are three key outcomes that would be required: 

• Re-thinking CBC’s customer service experience across the council as a whole and afresh with 
the potential for a whole system/whole council approach enabled through IT investment 

• Supporting the accommodation strategy project 

• Supporting the REST transformation project 

Page 48



 

   

 Page 15 of 20  

 

11.4.2 In order to achieve the above outcomes, the proposal is that the current Customer and Support 
Services Manager be given a project remit to lead a new approach to customer services across 
the council working closely with the 2020 partnership and playing a key role on both the REST 
and Accommodation Strategy projects.  This project role would be supplemented by “one off” 
external consultancy support which would be necessary as part of the REST transformation 
project.  Whilst it is hoped that this one-off cost can be accommodated within the existing project 
cost for REST this cannot be guaranteed at this point, however, there is a commitment to achieve 
that outcome if at all possible. 

12. The future of the 2020 Joint Committee 

12.1 The joint committee is governed by a constitution and provides the following functions; 

1) Provides strategic direction for the continued improvement and development of the 2020 
partnership; and 

Direction, development and performance management of the 2020 partnership services 
delegated to it by the delegating authorities 

 2) Secure the delivery of the following functions and activities delegated to it by the partner 
councils; 

  a) Human resources policies and procedures including pay and grading policy and total 
reward policy (including financial and non-financial benefits) 

  b) ICT network infrastructure, applications, policies and procedures. 

 3) Providing strategic direction and oversee performance, development and continued 
operation of the 2020 partnership services on behalf of the councils and in accordance with 
the standards and specifications set out by those councils. 

12.2 The joint committee does have a time limited life in terms of its service delivery role once those 
services currently delegated to it, e.g. GOSS and ICT are transferred to the local authority 
company(ies) and once the other partner council staff have transferred to one of the new local 
authority companies.  Some residual functions of the joint committee will revert to CBC. 

13. Performance management – monitoring and review 

13.1 Current arrangements 

13.1.1 Following the delegation of services to the joint committee each council has established its own 
client management arrangements.  CBC’s client management is provided by officers within the 
Business Development Team.  A client officer group has also been established which is a forum 
for all the client managers to meet with the joint committee Group Managers to challenge and 
monitor performance. 

13.1.2 Service plans are being developed in consultation with the client officer and the Cabinet Member 
for Corporate Services.  Overview and Scrutiny can call the Partnership MD or any other key 
officer to attend their meetings as necessary.   

13.2 Future arrangements 

13.2.1 Following the transfer of GOSS and ICT to the support services company, service performance 
will be reported to each authority in accordance with their normal performance reporting 
processes.  Annual service plans and service budgets will continue to be developed for 
agreement by each authority as currently.  The existing service plans will be used as the basis for 

Page 49



 

   

 Page 16 of 20  

 

the service specifications for the new company.  In addition, each company will prepare annually 
a rolling 3-year business plan and budget.  Each company will also meet the company reporting 
requirements of an annual report and accounts for submission to Companies House. 

13.2.2 A Partnership Board consisting of representatives from the company and the Cabinet Member 
and relevant officers of each client authority will be created.  Each company will hold meetings to 
allow the Cabinet Member to discuss matters of service performance and development.  In 
addition, each authority will have the right to summon directors and appropriate other officers to 
respond to questions from Overview and Scrutiny and all Councillors will have access to 
appropriate company staff to assist them in carrying out their democratic and representative roles. 

14. Reasons for recommendations 

14.1 As outlined within the body of this report. 

15. Alternative options considered 

15.1 As explained in paragraph 12.5, advice was commissioned to identify and assess the options for 
the provision of finance and ICT services were a decision to be taken to withdraw from the 2020 
partnership completely.  The alternatives and permutations considered were; (1) deliver the 
services in-house; (2) set up or join another shared service; (3) outsource the services. 

15.2 The advice identified a number of significant transition challenges, namely, staffing, ICT, timing 
and performance.  The advice also identified a number of key risks associated with the 
alternatives, specifically, risks associated with lack of resilience and expertise, recruitment 
difficulties, potential reputational damage, impact on other work, staff morale and implications for 
reduced performance. 

15.3 As already outlined, the costs of delivering GOSS and ICT in-house, which are on top of the 
existing cost of service, are estimated to be c£360k pa additional revenue costs and c£2.18m 
one-off costs.   

15.4 Were CBC to be able to find a shared service partner, which is not likely, then the one-off costs 
are estimated as likely to be similar to in-house, revenue costs would be higher for an initial 
period but it may be possible to reduce these once the service was established.   

15.5 Were CBC to look to outsource, outsourcing companies look to make a profit by sharing staff and 
streamlining processes.  The 2020 partnership has already done this so any outsourced provider 
may not see the resources available as part of CBC’s share as enough to make a good deal.  
Additional funding may also be needed for contribution to additional staff, cost of ICT 
infrastructure as well as project management, advisors and cost of procurement of the project 
itself. 

16. Consultation and feedback 

16.1 The 2020 programme has continued to engage with staff and trade union representatives 
throughout.  The Cabinet Member Corporate Services attended Overview and Scrutiny on 12 
September and employee sessions will take place during October to update them on the 
company proposals.  A number of staff also volunteered to become engagement champions for 
the programme and they have received regular updates on 2020 as it has progressed.   

16.2 The Head of Paid Service has kept local trade union and employee representatives updated 
through the Joint Liaison Forum and the Joint Consultative Committee has also received updates 
at its meetings. 

 

Page 50



 

   

 Page 17 of 20  

 

16.3 A&R committee will have received, on 3 October 2016, a briefing note of the proposal with regard 
to the future direction of travel with councils s151 officer. 

16.4 Partner organisations such as The Cheltenham Trust, Ubico Ltd and Cheltenham Borough 
Homes have also had meetings with the Partnership MD and each organisation has a client 
officer representative on the client officer group. 

17. Equality impact assessment 

17.1  Equality impact assessments were undertaken to support the transfer of the customer services 
and revenues and benefits services into the 2020 partnership. Those assessments remain valid 
and will be used by our in-house teams to ensure a high level of service accessibility and to 
continue the level of discretionary support that the services provides to those that need it most. 

Report author Contact officer: Pat Pratley, Head of Paid Service 

pat.pratley@cheltenham.gov.uk, 01242 264100 

Appendices 1. Risk Assessment 

2. 2020 Partnership Updated Business Case – 30 September 2016 

3. Annex B Company structure and governance principles 

Background information 1. GOSS and ICT Functions – Schedule 2 of the 2020 Joint 
Committee Inter-Authority Agreement 

2. 2020 Vision for Joint Working – Cabinet 24 June 2014 

3. 2020 Vision Memorandum of Understanding – Cabinet 14 April 
2015 

4. 2020 Vision Programme (information Paper) – Overview and 
Scrutiny 21 September 2015 

5. 2020 Vision – Cabinet and Council – 13 and 19 October 2015 

6. Business case for sharing Revenues and Benefits – Cabinet 9 
February 2016 

7. Business case for sharing Customer and Support Services – 9 
February 2016 

 

Page 51



 

   

$rn2gg4jw Page 18 of 20 Last updated 04 October 2016 

 

Risk Assessment                  Appendix 1  
 

The risk Original risk score 
(impact x likelihood) 

Managing risk 

Risk 
ref. 

Risk description Risk 
Owner 

Date 
raised 

Impact 
1-5 

Likeli- 
hood 
1-6 

Score Control Action Deadline Responsible 
officer 

Transferred to 
risk register 

 If a decision is taken to 
withdraw from the 
partnership completely then 
the council will face 
significant one-off costs and 
ongoing revenues costs as 
well as suffer reputationally  

Pat 
Pratley 

30.9.16 5 4 20 Reduce Ensure that CBC 
members of the joint 
committee have 
sufficient information 
and support to help in 
their decision making 

30.9.16 Pat 
Pratley 

 

 If savings to replace those 
foregone cannot be found 
then there is a possibility 
that the 2017-18 budget will 
not be balanced 

Pat 
Pratley 

30.9.16 5 2 10 Accept Cabinet currently 
reviewing the 2017-18 
budget proposals and 
the longer term medium 
financial strategy 

1.3.17 Paul 
Jones 

 

  
If the council cannot agree 
a shared Customer Access 
Strategy it will incur 
additional cost in order to 
implement its own 
requirements 

Mark 
Sheldon 

30.9.16 3 2 6 Accept Continue to collaborate 
with vision 2020 
partners in order to 
influence the 
development of the 
Customer Access 
Strategy to meet CBC 
needs. 

31.3.18 Judy 
Hibbert 

 

            

Explanatory notes 

Impact – an assessment of the impact if the risk occurs on a scale of 1-5 (1 being least impact and 5 being major or critical) 

Likelihood – how likely is it that the risk will occur on a scale of 1-6  

(1 being almost impossible, 2 is very low, 3 is low, 4 significant,  5 high and 6 a very high probability) 

Control - Either: Reduce / Accept / Transfer to 3rd party / Close 

 

 
 
Guidance 

P
age 52



 

   

$rn2gg4jw Page 19 of 20 Last updated 04 October 2016 

 

Types of risks could include the following: 

• Potential reputation risks from the decision in terms of bad publicity, impact on the community or on partners;  

• Financial risks associated with the decision; 

• Political risks that the decision might not have cross-party support; 

• Environmental risks associated with the decision; 

• Potential adverse equality impacts from the decision; 

• Capacity risks in terms of the ability of the organisation to ensure the effective delivery of the decision 

• Legal risks arising from the decision 
Remember to highlight risks which may impact on the strategy and actions which are being followed to deliver the objectives, so that members can identify the 
need to review objectives, options and decisions on a timely basis should these risks arise. 
 
Risk ref 
If the risk is already recorded, note either the corporate risk register or TEN reference 
 
Risk Description 
Please use “If xx happens then xx will be the consequence” (cause and effect). For example “If the council’s business continuity planning does not deliver 
effective responses to the predicted flu pandemic then council services will be significantly impacted.”    
 
Risk owner 
Please identify the lead officer who has identified the risk and will be responsible for it.  
 
Risk score 
Impact on a scale from 1 to 5 multiplied by likelihood on a scale from 1 to 6. Please see risk scorecard for more information on how to score a risk 
 
Control 
Either: Reduce / Accept / Transfer to 3rd party / Close 
 
Action 
There are usually things the council can do to reduce either the likelihood or impact of the risk.  Controls may already be in place, such as budget monitoring 
or new controls or actions may also be needed. 
 
 
Responsible officer 
Please identify the lead officer who will be responsible for the action to control the risk. 
For further guidance, please refer to the risk management policy 
 
Transferred to risk register 
Please ensure that the risk is transferred to a live risk register. This could be a team, divisional or corporate risk register depending on the nature of the risk 

P
age 53



 

   

$rn2gg4jw Page 20 of 20 Last updated 04 October 2016 

 

and what level of objective it is impacting on. 
P

age 54



 

 

 

 

 

Report on the Updated Business 
Case  

and  

Next Stage Development of the 
2020 Partnership  

(Original June 2016 - Updated for 
Joint Committee 30 September 
2016) 

 

 

September 2016 

Appendix 2 

2 

Page 55



1. Background 

1.1 In June 2014 the four GO Shared Services Partner Councils approved a “Report 

and Outline Business Case for a “2020 Vision for Joint Working””. In that report 

there was an agreed proposition: 

1.2 “Four Independent Councils determining their own policies, priorities and decisions 

supported by a small number of expert advisors who commission and monitor 

services either from the private and voluntary sectors or from local authority owned 

service delivery companies.” 

1.3 It was recognised that the proposition could effectively lead to councils that do not 

directly employ any of their own staff, but rather, Councils will jointly own a local 

authority company which would provide services and deliver outcomes in line with 

the wishes of each individual council. 

1.4 Subsequently, in December 2014 the four 2020 Partner Councils approved a 

“Report on Options for Future Delivery Models and Interim Management 

Arrangements” prepared by Activist Ltd. In the report Activist carried out an option 

appraisal of the long-listed sourcing options, evaluating each option against the 

outcomes framework set out below: 

Table 1.1: Outcomes Framework 

Outcome  Contributory outcomes 

Savings · Delivers realistic and sustainable revenue savings. 
· Provides a positive return on investment in the medium to long term. 
· Enables us to make further savings through partnership and better asset 

management. 
· Enables opportunities for income generation. 

Influence  · Respects our separate identities as individual authorities.  
· Ensures our decision making will remain locally accountable. 
· Strengthens our ability to exercise community leadership on behalf of our 

localities. 
· Allows us to retain strong local knowledge in our frontline services. 
· Each authority has impartial commissioning and client side advice from 

people they trust. 

Quality 
  

· Enhances and maintains good quality services to the public. 
· Allows us to nurture our partnerships and take advantage of new ones. 
· Creates organisations that are flexible and adaptable to future changes.  
· Has governance and structures that are streamlined and easy to 

understand. 
· Is widely acknowledged to be socially responsible. 

Creativity · Empowers staff to be creative, collaborative and enquiring.  
· Supports our commitment to a public service that responds to and 

empowers our local communities. 
· Fosters and rewards an innovative, can-do approach to delivering 

services. 

Page 56



1.5 The report was not designed to be a definitive final assessment of the merits of 

each option and acknowledged that more work should be conducted to confirm the 

final preferred option based on a business case which is both robust and realistic. 

1.6 The overall results of the option appraisal carried out by Activist are shown in the 

table below and suggest a clear advantage for either a sharing option or a local 

authority company. 

 Table 1.2: Summary of Option Appraisal of Long-listed Sourcing Options 

Options Outcomes Shortlist? Key Issues 

Savings Sovereignty Quality Creativity 

In-house 
transformation 

L H M L No  · Lacks scale 
economies. 

Private sector 
joint venture 

L M L M No  · Poor ROI. 
· Long lead-

in. 

Sharing H H M M Yes · Tried and 
tested. 

Local authority 
company 

H H M M Yes · Local 
experience. 

Spin-out to 
mutual or trust 

L M M M No  · Poor ROI 
· Long lead-

in. 

1.7 The report concluded that whilst there was no significant difference in terms of the 

outcomes, based on the financial assessment the approach recommended was to 

establish a shared services arrangement under a Joint Committee and then move 

to a Local Authority owned company model, both dependent upon business cases. 

1.8 It is noted that the report set out the key differences between the shared service 

under a Joint Committee and the company model as follows: 

· The generation of income through profits made on trading. 

· A move to a stakeholder pension scheme for new starters. 

· Having a single employer would reduce complexity. 

1.9 It was therefore recognised that the Joint Committee option was limited as it cannot 

deliver potential longer-term savings that a company model makes possible. 

1.10 In August 2015 the full “2020 Vision for Joint Working Business Case” was 

prepared. The business case was approved by each Council’s Section 151 Officer 

and was independently reviewed and validated by CIPFA working in association 

with Proving Services based at the Cranfield Business School.  

1.11 That business case based on the original proposition, forecast to return cumulative 

savings totalling £38m over a 10 year period in return for a proposed total 

investment of £10.1m over the same period with annual revenue savings of £5.7m 

after 5 years.  

Page 57



Table 1.3:  Financial case for the overall programme (August 2015) 

 2014/15 
£000 

2015/16 
£000 

2016/17 
£000 

2017/18 
£000 

2018/19 
£000 

2019/20 
£000 

April 
2020-

March 
2024 
£000 

Total 
£000 

Programme 
Costs 

430 2,774 3,715 1,873 1,308 40 0 10,140 

Funded by:         

TCA Grant 430 2,774 596 0 0 0 0 3,800 
Council 
Contributions 

0 0 3,119 1,873 1,308 40 0 6,340 

Total 430 2,774 3,715 1,873 1,308 40 0 10,140 
Savings 
Annual 

0 491 1,827 952 1,419 474 580 5,743 

Savings 
Cumulative 

0 491 2,318 3,270 4,689 5,163 22,084 38,015 

1.12 Consequently, the business case was agreed and approved by the four Councils in 

September/October 2015 along with a number of joint strategies including a 

Commissioning Strategy. 

1.13 Subsequently the 2020 Joint Committee was established and became operational 

in February 2016 with a number of shared services being established from April 

2016. 

  

Page 58



2. Introduction 

2.1 This report considers the business case for the next phase of the development of 

the partnership taking into account the decisions taken and further work completed 

to date. This September update of the 2016 business case approved in June 2016 

takes account of the financial implications as a result of the revised position of 

Cheltenham Borough Council.  

2.2 The business case therefore focuses on updating the original financial assumptions 

based on; 

· a proposed company structure,  

· considering the potential for additional shared services and trading,  

· the proposed new Commissioning Framework. 

2.3 In addition, the business case is compared with the new baseline costs of 

continuing with shared services under a Joint Committee.  

2.4 It is not considered necessary to do any further work on the broader outcomes 

against the Outcome Framework as sufficient work has been completed already to 

prove that both options (Joint Committee and company model) work sufficiently well 

to meet the required outcomes for partner Councils.  

2.5 Any changes in outcomes required by Partner Councils can be considered as part 

of the commissioning and specification of services at the appropriate time in 

accordance with the new commissioning framework. 

3. Partnership Benefits Delivered to Date 

3.1 As the partnership continues to develop it is notable that some early benefits have 

already been developed. These include both non-cashable benefits in addition to 

the cashable savings set out in the business case and are summarised below.  

· Cashable savings to date are on profile with savings already delivered in 

2015/16 and 2016/17 of £2,306,000. 

· Improved knowledge sharing and learning. 

· Increased Resilience. 

· Technological improvements. 

· Smarter working. 

· Reduction in office space. 

· More consistent approach to HR, alignment of policies and procedures. 

Page 59



· Cost avoidance in procurement. E.g. Non cashable savings due to market 

presence of Ubico Ltd., valued at £900k for FoDDC achieved through the 

introduction of an enhanced service as part of the waste contract renegotiation.  

4. New Commissioning Framework 

4.1 The original high level Commissioning Strategy for the 2020 Vision Partnership 

approved in September/October 2015 builds on the recommendations of the 

Activist Report. This outline framework covers: 

·  Commissioning Principles 

·  Approach to Commissioning 

·  Service Design Principles 

·  Long Term Strategy & Framework Development 

4.2 This strategy stated that if, in the future the partnership moves, as planned, to a 

Teckal company model rather than a Joint Committee the proposal would be to 

discuss the formation of a distinct shared commissioning function that in the longer 

term could take a more 'joined up' approach to commissioning to ensure that 

opportunities for collaboration are fully exploited.  

4.3 Longer term the plan involved the development of a Commissioning Strategy 

covering commissioning arrangements across all partners.  That strategy would 

include the design of a flexible commissioning framework which operates across all 

partnership organisations.  The organisation of commissioning activity within the 

partnership would also require consideration and would be designed in accordance 

with the shared principles agreed by each Council. 

4.4 Consequently a project to consider the options for creating a shared 

Commissioning Framework that could be operated across the partnership was 

completed. 

4.5 It was recognised that given most partners’ commitment to put all services (in due 

course) into a company structure, doing nothing is not an option. Equally, although 

a single shared commissioning support service could be created in theory, the 

differing approaches to commissioning across the partnership render this 

undeliverable in practice. 

4.6 The recommended way ahead, therefore, is to: 

· Create a 3-way shared commissioning support team (Forest, Cotswold & West 

Oxfordshire) within a co-ordinating company. 

· Agree that, subject to the above, a shared commissioning support team can be 

augmented on a case-by-case basis by internal and external specialists, 

including CBC commissioners. 

Page 60



5. Further Shared Services 

5.1 The shared services proposition is to deliver financial savings through the efficient 

management of more flexible skilled and resilient shared staff resources – while still 

delivering the agreed outcomes for each partner council and with no detriment to 

the customer. In terms of financial efficiency it is assumed that the greater the 

number of staff that are shared, the greater the potential financial benefits.  

5.2 Since the establishment of GOSS and Ubico Ltd. in 2012, confidence has grown in 

the partnership’s ability to generate financial efficiencies through shared services. 

As a result we are now in the position where most of the partner Councils will 

consider sharing all of their staffing resources.  

5.3 Consequently the re-fresh of the business case re-confirms the earlier assumptions 

made about the level of sharing of staff resources whilst taking account of specific 

feedback from individual Councils about any specific limitations. 

5.4 Following the Joint Committee meeting in June 2016 the business case has been 

further updated to reflect the anticipated position of Cheltenham Borough Council 

limiting their involvement in shared services to only ICT and GO Shared Services.  

6. Commercialisation & Trading 

6.1 CIPFA and Proving Services were engaged to consider the opportunities for 

commercial trading across the four Councils. For this high level process, a number 

of individuals across the councils were interviewed to assess their perspectives on 

the councils’ options and abilities to move towards a more commercial approach.  

CIPFA & Proving Services also used their own expertise and experience to 

consider how to maximise any advantages identified, both in general and for 

specific services.  

6.2 The interviewees recognised that staying still is not an option, but felt that the 

councils currently lack clarity on the direction services should pursue, including 

which areas will generate the best returns in respect of finance, performance and 

social value.  

Opportunities for greater commercialism 

6.3 The ability to enhance council services by trading outside traditional markets is 

limited in many cases and is also faced with local competition. There are 

opportunities but these are often small scale and should not be seen as ‘quick wins’ 

or generators of huge income. Starting commercial services on a small scale may 

however lead to larger gains and a stronger foothold in the market in the future. 

Therefore this option is worth further investigation.  

6.4 Providing services to other councils may be an option worth pursuing for many 

services i.e. offering a better product than is currently the case, at a competitive 

price.  

Page 61



6.5 Some members have expressed an interest in moving into new markets where 

Local Authorities can be seen to have a role.  These include things such as energy 

provision or supply (solar farms) or house building with a Council purchasing land 

and developing it itself for both commercial and social benefit. These rewards are 

possible and if a council decides to pursue this, further specialist skills and 

knowledge of these particular sectors is critical for success. 

6.6 Regardless of external trading opportunities a more commercial focus on the 

Councils’ services and costs is very likely to lead to higher efficiency savings for the 

partner Councils. 

Commercial opportunities - staffing and skills 

6.7 The move towards a more commercial outlook in services is recognised within the 

current council cultures. However, there is varying opinion as to whether all current 

staff have the skills and the mind set to make this a permanent and successful 

movement. There needs to be a focus on managing this change with a proactive 

programme which involves commercial skills training and commercial awareness.  

What is already planned to build the foundations of a more commercial 

approach? 

6.8 The councils are already focused on a number of areas which will build the 

foundations of a more commercial approach. These are:  

· Undertake a fundamental review of the Councils’ approach to employing, 
retaining and developing staff with a sharper focus on developing/acquiring the 
necessary commercial skills and approach. 

· Developing shared services and creating business relationships with partner 
Councils. 

· Investigating a company structure which optimises tax and pension positions 
and provides maximum flexibility to expand services in the future  for the benefit 
of the partner councils and allows for expanding into new market opportunities 
should the right proposal be identified. 

 

What more can be done to become more commercial? 

6.9 The CIPFA report also recommended that the Partnership should consider 

developing:  

· A much better understanding of cost-competitiveness compared with other 
providers, particularly for support services which impact not only on other 
support services but on all direct service provision be it a shared service or a 
retained service. 

· Further service redesign in support service areas. 

· Reviewing other partnerships- including joining existing partnerships in other 
councils- to determine further opportunities either to collaborate or take 
advantage of achieving better value for money. 

 

Page 62



Commercialisation conclusions 

6.10 Whilst there are commercial opportunities available the business case takes a 

prudent approach to the initial benefits. As stated above more work would need to 

be done to prepare services to be more competitive and identify the most beneficial 

potential markets within which to compete. As part of the development of the 

partnership’s People Strategy emphasis will be given to developing a more 

commercial approach. 

6.11 However it is recognised that the optimum corporate company structure should be 

introduced to enable trading opportunities to be fully exploited. This is an important 

factor in determining not only the overall corporate structure but also the optimal 

way in which to group functions into one or more companies. 

6.12 For example, based on the initial assessment of the available trading markets, it is 

possible to conclude that the current markets for generic ICT and financial support 

services are very mature and competitive. Therefore it is unlikely that the 

partnership would wish to compete in these markets. 

6.13 In contrast however, the current market for local authority regulatory services is 

underdeveloped with very few suppliers. Therefore this is a market with greater 

opportunity for successful trading and may prove attractive to the partnership. 

6.14 The availability of trading opportunities and the potential partners in any service 

delivery company are key factors in grouping and establishing the service 

companies. 

7. Company Structure Framework 

7.1 A technical report on the legal and tax implications of possible corporate structure 

formulations for the companies has been completed by Trowers & Hamlins and 

KPMG. Their advice is set out in their report (commercial in confidence) dated 

March 2016 and was presented to the Members of the Joint Committee in April 

2016. Further advice was provided dated August 2016. 

7.2 The key criteria for the 2020 partnership are to develop a company structure 

framework that delivers the flexibility to meet both current and future needs and can 

be implemented incrementally over time. Once such a framework has been agreed 

it will be for the partner Councils to determine which staff and services they wish to 

transfer into companies and when. 

7.3 The preferred corporate formulation for the partnership has optimal features that; 

· Allow new Local Authorities to join (or leave) tax efficiently; 

· Minimise the on-going tax liability of any entities to be established (by 

considering available reliefs); 

Page 63



· Allow other Local Authorities to ‘buy-in’ to the structure on a piecemeal basis, if 

desired, to participate in only some services rather than to take a share in the 

overall model; 

· Allow scope for trading and income generation from third parties in the future; 

and 

· Allow transfer of staff from the Local Authorities to companies. 

7.4 To enable consideration of the appropriate company framework it is first necessary 

to consider the services, functions, and staff that Councils are prepared to transfer 

to a company in order to help define the purpose(s) for that company (or 

companies).  

7.5 Current Retained Services – (Non-shared/Non-traded Services) 

· These retained services are currently provided by each Council’s directly 

employed staff, primarily for the sole benefit of a single Council and are not 

shared. These services could be provided discretely by autonomous divisions 

within the company model. For any statutory roles or non-delegable functions 

dual employment contracts would be required. Each Council may have a 

different view of which of their services can be readily accommodated within the 

proposed framework and may prefer to retain direct employment of these staff. 

7.6 Shared Services – (Non-traded Services) 

· These are the services that are currently shared or could be shared across two 

or more of the partner Councils primarily for the benefit of the partner Councils 

but with the potential for some limited external trading. In terms of the company 

framework these services would be delivered to the founding Councils on a cost 

sharing basis and any external trading with third parties could be carried out 

within the 20% Teckal exemption. 

7.7 Shared Services – (Traded Services) 

· These services would be provided primarily for external third parties with limited 

service provision for two or more of the partner Councils. In terms of the 

company framework these services would be delivered on a profit making basis 

and there would be no limit on external trading. These services would generate 

income and profit for the shareholding Councils. 

Proposed Company Structure 

7.8 The further legal and tax advice received from Trowers & Hamlins and KPMG in 

August 2016 has concluded that the most appropriate and tax efficient company 

structure would be the establishment of a number of companies limited by 

guarantee.  Based on this advice a proposed company structure that best meets 

the requirements of the partnership and the criteria given in 7.3 above has been 

Page 64



determined. The framework is flexible and can be developed and implemented 

overtime as required.  

7.9 It comprises the core building blocks of a Teckal Co-ordinating Company, Teckal 

Non-Traded Services Companies and potential for Traded Services Companies. 

This approach would allow the Councils to maximise employment within a company 

model, whilst managing and ring-fencing risk within different entities, with the 

flexibility for new partners to join as required. 

7.10 The way companies are established and structured will be developed over time as 

the need arises and based on appropriate business cases as required. The 

framework provides a basis for these future decisions that will reduce potential risk 

duplication and cost. 

Local Authority Companies and ‘Teckal’ 

7.11 The partner Councils already have experience of both successfully establishing and 

operating Ubico Ltd. as a ‘Teckal’ company. 

7.12 The Teckal exemption (named after the EU case that established the principle) 

provides for an exemption to EU procurement rules in certain circumstances. 

7.13 The exemption applies where the Council(s) exercise a similar degree of control as 

they exercised over their own departments (this test is satisfied where the 

Council(s) has a controlling interest in the Company) and where the essential part 

of the Company’s activities is performed for those controlling Councils.   

7.14 In order that the Councils can rely on the Teckal exemption, the ‘control’ test (as 

explained above) will need to be satisfied. Each Council will have a shared 

ownership and votes, which will be set out in the companies’ constitutional 

documents. The Councils as owners will have control over the Company through a 

governance structure of directors sitting on the Company Board, which will form the 

operational management and decision making body for the company.  

7.15 A contract or service level agreement will be in place between each Council and the 

Company, setting out the required service specification and standards. The 

Company and its directors are not able to alter the service and standards set by the 

Council. 

8. Proposed Initial Companies Set Up 

8.1 In terms of the company structure’s financial efficiency it is assumed that the 

greater the number of staff that are transferred into a company and the greater 

number of staff that are shared, the greater the potential financial benefits.  

8.2 Consequently, the Partnership Managing Director proposed an initial company set 

up that groups services and staff based on the advice received and taking into 

account the new Commissioning Framework and the potential for 

Page 65



commercialisation. This initial company set up has been used as the basis for the 

refresh of the business case.  

8.3 For the purposes of the updated business case the financial benefits have been 

modelled for the expected scenario described in paragraph 9.11 and illustrated in 

Figure 8.1. 

8.4 The business case shows that based on the current shared services there is 

sufficient critical mass and benefits to enable the company structure to be adopted 

and the first companies established. However, it will be for each Council to 

determine the level of benefit they would wish to deliver by taking advantage of the 

company structure by becoming shareholders in the companies. 

8.5 Once this company structure has been agreed more detailed work would be carried 

out as part of the implementation stage on establishing appropriate governance and 

management structures for the companies although it is expected that these would 

be largely based on the current partnership structures.

Page 66



Figure 8.1: Companies Structure

COMPANIES

COUNCILS

CO-ORDINATING COMPANY

WODC

OWNERSHIP

CDC

OWNERSHIP

FoDDC

OWNERSHIP

CBC

OWNERSHIP

SUPPORT SERVICES COMPANY

Teckal Company Limited by Guarantee (CLG)

Member Councils: CBC; FoDDC; CDC; WODC.

Contracts with:

CBC; FoDDC; CDC; WODC;

Co-ordinating Co.; Regulatory Services Co.; 

UBICO Ltd.; Cheltenham Borough Homes; 

Cheltenham Trust.

COMPANY STRUCTURE

Teckal Company Limited by Guarantee (CLG)

Member Councils: FoDDC; CDC; WODC.

Contracts with:

FoDDC; CDC; WODC.

REGULATORY SERVICES COMPANY

Teckal Company Limited by Guarantee (CLG)

Member Councils: FoDDC; CDC; WODC.

Contracts with:

FoDDC; CDC; WODC.

P
age 67



9. Updated Business Case 

9.1 As set out in the background to this report the “2020 Vision for Joint Working 

Business Case” approved in 2015 has been updated.  

9.2 The 2015 business case based on the original proposition, forecast to return 

cumulative savings totalling £38m over a 10 year period with annual revenue 

savings of £5.7m in return for a proposed total investment of £10.1m over the 

same period. 

9.3 In comparison the refreshed 2016 business case approved by the Joint 

Committee in June 2016 showed increased cumulative savings totalling between 

£40m and  £41m over a 10 year period with annual revenue savings of between 

£5.95m and £6.2m after 5 years, depending on which Scenario is adopted, in 

return for a proposed total investment of £10.1m over the same period. 

9.4 This update of the June 2016 business case reflects the financial implications as 

a result of the proposal by Cheltenham Borough Council to limit involvement to 

the single shared services company for GOSS and ICT services. This new 

scenario results in revised cumulative savings totalling £41m over a 10 year 

period with annual revenue savings of £5.57m after 5 years in return for a 

proposed total investment of £10.1m over the same period. 

 

Finance update for refresh of the financial case 

9.5 The financial business case has been updated for the following: 

· The salary baseline position has been moved to 2016/17; 

· Savings delivered in 2015/16 and 2016/17 have been incorporated; 

· Shared services have been reviewed to reflect current political views; 

· Savings assumptions have been reviewed to ensure they remain valid (i.e. 

any shared services savings already delivered are appropriately reflected in 

future targets); 

· Assumptions regarding pension exit valuations and crystallisation of liabilities 

have been discussed with actuarial specialists and are not considered to be a 

barrier to progress (see separate section below); 

· While the outcome of detailed actuarial modelling is still pending, the existing 

pension savings assumptions have been maintained.  The only exception to 

this is that the level of savings for Cheltenham Borough Council have been 

reviewed in proportion to the reduced number of employees that may transfer 

to the company model; 

· The overall programme costs have been refreshed to reflect current 

anticipated costs.  Some budgets, especially expert advice, are expected to 

exceed the current provision.  However, the increased costs are expected to 

be funded through savings elsewhere in the programme budget and the 

overall cost envelop for the programme is expected to remain within £10.1m; 

Page 68



· The operational costs associated with the proposed company models have 

been reviewed and are still found to be in line with the previous business 

case.  The share of costs has been updated to reflect the number of 

shareholders in each company; 

· Initial VAT and Corporation Tax advice from KPMG has been reviewed; there 

are no VAT or Corporation Tax implications to include in the financial case at 

this stage.   

Assumptions used with the business case 

9.6 The following assumptions have been used within the business case: 

· Shared service savings of between 0% - 15% have been applied to each 

service.  The % saving varies according to the degree of sharing which is 

already taking place within the service; 

· The costs and savings from the Cotswold District Council, Forest of Dean 

District Council and West Oxfordshire District Council shared Public 

Protection service remain in line with the business case for the shared 

service.  The costs and savings will be updated once the project is complete; 

· Savings already delivered reflect actual budget adjustments incorporated into 

2015/16 and 2016/17 budgets; 

· Employee savings from a more commercial approach have been 

incorporated at 3% of back office service budgets (although delivery of the 

savings should arise across all service areas) and 10% of development 

control budgets; 

· An allowance has been made for employee salary increases of 5% reflecting 

additional responsibilities associated with joint working; 

· An allowance of 3% has been made to reduce savings from holding vacant 

posts empty; 

· Pension’s savings assumptions are as per the previous business case with 

employee turnover of 10% assumed and employer contributions to a new 

stakeholder pension scheme of 5%. Some of the pension potential savings 

have been excluded from the business case to fund potential cost increases 

from the review of employee Terms and Conditions and the reward package.    

  

Page 69



Programme Costs 

9.7 The original business case included a programme cost of £8.7m.  The update, in 

the autumn of 2015, indicated that the programme budget would need to 

increase to £10.1m.  However, as there was great deal of uncertainty over 

provisions for redundancy costs and ICT costs, it was decided that the increased 

programme costs would be recognised as a risk by the (then) Member 

Governance Board and the Councils would not be asked to formally agree an 

increase in contributions to the programme at that point in time. 

9.8 The programme budget assumptions have been reviewed with the Group 

Managers, Section 151 Officers, and the Programme Team and reflect the 

proposed limited involvement by Cheltenham Borough Council.  The budget for 

external expert advice needs to be increased. However, at this point in time these 

costs can be met within the £10.1m programme cost.  

9.9 The split of the partner council funding has been reviewed to take account of the 

expected involvement of each Council reflecting the proposed change by 

Cheltenham Borough Council.  The cost of creating the companies has been 

reflected in the contributions for the respective councils. 

9.10 Table 9.1 below shows the breakdown of programme costs. 

Financial Benefits  

9.11 The financial benefits have been updated for the expected scenario of the 

creation of a co-ordinating/commissioning company owned by CDC, FoDDC and 

WODC.  A shared regulatory services company would also be created for these 

same shareholders with a view to trading the services being provided.  A third 

shared-services company would be created to provide shared services to all four 

partner councils and limiting the involvement of Cheltenham Borough Council to 

ICT and GO Shared Services.  

9.12 Table  9.2 below shows the expected financial position and the comparison 

between the original 2015 business case, the updated 2016 business case 

approved by the Joint Committee in June 2016, and the current anticipated 

financial implications based on Cheltenham Borough Council’s anticipated 

decision to limit their involvement to ICT and GO Shared Services.  

9.13 Table 9.3 below shows the split between savings deliverable under a Joint 

Committee arrangement and the additional savings deliverable under the 

companies’ scenario. 

  

Page 70



Table 9.1: Programme cost breakdown 

 

2020 Programme Costs

2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 TOTAL TCA Grant

Net Council

Contribution to 

Programme

Expert Advice 130,000 102,000 521,000 20,000 0 0 773,000 

Programme Management / Project Support 98,000 865,000 775,000 1,017,000 724,000 310,000 3,789,000 

ICT 106,000 477,000 1,080,000 1,050,000 400,000 0 3,113,000 

Cost of Transformational Change 45,000 945,000 182,000 638,000 501,000 154,000 2,465,000 

379,000 2,389,000 2,558,000 2,725,000 1,625,000 464,000 10,140,000 (3,800,000) 6,340,000 

Cheltenham Borough Council 75,000 473,000 685,000 390,000 158,000 20,000 1,801,000 (950,000) 851,000 

Forest of Dean District Council 122,000 671,000 691,000 778,000 489,000 148,000 2,899,000 (950,000) 1,949,000 

West Oxfordshire District Council 96,000 568,000 591,000 778,000 489,000 148,000 2,670,000 (950,000) 1,720,000 

Cotswold District Council 86,000 678,000 591,000 778,000 489,000 148,000 2,770,000 (950,000) 1,820,000 

379,000 2,390,000 2,558,000 2,724,000 1,625,000 464,000 10,140,000 (3,800,000) 6,340,000 

P
age 71



Table 9.2: Savings comparison between business case revisions 

 

Business Case Aug 

15 

£m 

Business Case June 

16 Approved by Joint 

Committee 

£m 

Business Case Sept 

16 Revised for 

Cheltenham BC 

proposed 

involvement 

Estimated Costs 10.14 10.14 10.14 

Transformation 

Challenge Award 

Grant 

3.8 3.8 3.8 

Estimated Net Cost 6.34 6.34 6.341 

Savings 5.743 5.953 – 6.195 5.571 

Payback Period 

(gross costs) 
1.8 years 1.6 – 1.7 years 1.8 years 

Payback Period  

(net costs) 
1.1 years 0.9 – 1 years 1.1 years 

 

 Table 9.3: Savings comparison - Joint Committee v Companies  

 CBC 

£000 

CDC 

£000 

FofDDC 

£000 

WODC 

£000 

 

Total 

£000 

Joint Committee      

Shared Services 

 
200 844 747 1,100 2,891 

Other Efficiency Savings 

 
299 550 431 182 1,462 

Total Joint Committee Savings 499 1,394 1,178 1,282 4,353 

      

Company      

Pensions 

 
0 250 240 210 700 

Commercial Approach 

 
91 282 201 245 819 

Company Overhead 

 
(25) (92) (92) (92) (301) 

Total Company Savings 66 440 349 363 1,218 

 

Total Savings 
565 1,834 1,527 1,645 5,571 

 

 

  

Page 72



9.14 The financial savings reflect cashable savings to each authority.  In addition to the 

cashable savings, the 2020 Partnership will also lead to savings from cost avoidance.  This 

has already been demonstrated in the procurement of a revised waste and recycling  

collection contract at Forest of Dean District Council.  The AON Hewitt report in May 2014 

identified a potential doubling of future benefit contributions into the LGPS over the next 20 

years. By moving employees into a company model, these cost increases will be mitigated 

for new joiners.   

Pensions Benefits update 

9.15 The pension assumptions within the approved business case for 2020 Joint Working were 

based on an actuarial report from AON Hewitt “2020 Vision Actuarial Advice to Support the 

Joint Working Team” dated 30 May 2014. These assumptions are based on the proposition 

that the Councils would create local authority owned companies that would enable new 

staff to be employed without access to the Local Government Pension Scheme with an 

alternative stakeholder pension provided. 

9.16 This report estimated through AON Hewitt’s pension modelling that annual pension 

contribution rates could reduce by around £1.5m in 10 years’ time rising to £3.5 m in 20 

years’ time. 

9.17 The report also identified the risks of triggering an exit valuation by the pension body if a 

Council transferred all of their employees and a re-valuation of the fund. The business 

case assumed that exit valuation would be avoided and made an allowance for the cost of 

re-valuation. 

9.18 AON Hewitt suggested a number of ways of avoiding triggering an exit valuation by either 

avoiding crystallisation of the pension deficit by continuing to employ one or more  

members in each Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS), or applying for a Direction 

Order under Schedule 3 of the LGPS Regulations. 

9.19 Since the original report discussions have been held with both the Gloucestershire and 

Oxfordshire pension providers to understand the implications of the company proposals. 

The feedback has been that provided each council continues to employ its statutory 

officers through dual employment contracts then an exit valuation will not be applicable and 

therefore a crystallisation of outstanding liabilities is unlikely to occur.   

9.20 The actuaries are in the process of modelling the detailed financial implications of the 

move to the company model, therefore some level of risk remains.  However, the risks 

highlighted in the AON Hewitt report are significantly reduced and are considered low and 

manageable. 

9.21 The risks of triggering an exit valuation can be mitigated by ensuring that each Council 

continues to employ some members of the LGPS; these employees may have dual 

employment contracts with both the Council and the local authority owned company. 

  

Page 73



10. Next Steps 

Timescales & Implementation 

10.1 A detailed implementation plan for the establishment of the companies would be developed 

based on the feedback from each Council on the timing of transfer of services and staff into 

a company model. 

10.2 Following approval of this business case to develop the next stage of the partnership, all of 

the actions necessary within the Programme to deliver the next stage of the partnership 

would be planned and agreed. These would include plans for the implementation of the 

new Commissioning Framework, the necessary governance and management structures 

for the Company, process redesign work, ICT and People Strategies. 

10.3 The implementation would continue to use the current programme management approach 

and resources as set out in the programme plan and the revised business case.  

10.4 The indicative timetable for implementing the 2020 Vision is provided in Figure 10.1 below. 

The approach to delivering the 2020 Vision is evolutionary and subject to a series of 

decision points. The plan will be regularly reviewed and updated as decisions are taken. 

Engagement & Communication  

10.5 A comprehensive communication and engagement plan will be produced to reflect the 

decisions made as a result of this report. It will cover staff, elected members, Trade 

Unions, staff representatives and all other major stakeholders, both internal and external.  

Page 74



Figure10.1: Indicative timetable for delivering Vision 2020 

Organisational Model: Governance, Commissioning

Organisational Design and Development

Implement and embed Shared Services (ICT, Customer Services, GOSS, 

Revenues and Benefits, Housing Support, Legal and Property, Building Control) 

Common Core: ICT; HR; Finance & processes

Develop and implement new HR policies and procedures

Company options appraisal

Set up, implement and embed Company Model

June 

2016

June 

2017

n n June 

2019

nJune 

2018

nDec 

2015

e Dec 

2016

e Dec 

2017

e Dec 

2018

e Dec 

2020

e

Shared Services

Design, implement and embed Shared Public Protection (CDC, FODDC, WODC)

Design, implement and embed Shared 

Services for Company Establishment

Develop, implement and embed further Shared Services post Company 

Establishment

Applications

Business processes , financial, performance, annual 

reporting, business planning

Leading through change

Leadership development

Review

Set up Joint Committee

Company Decision 

report to Councils

Companies 

registered

Company Model 

Operational

Design and Develop Prepare to implement Implement & embed

New Approach to Reward and Recognition 

Infrastructure

Develop and Implement ICT Strategy

Organisational Design for Company Model

Business and Service Transformation

Develop and implement Customer Strategy

P
age 75



 

Future Development 

10.6 Further work will be undertaken to design the future approach to Customer Services 

under the company model. This will need to take account of the new service delivery 

model whilst providing a seamless transition for customers. Customer contact will 

remain via existing channels and a local presence will be maintained to deal with local 

contact.  The proposal would be to maximise the use of technology in allowing 24-hour 

self-service wherever possible.  This ‘channel- shift’ will help to reduce customer 

demand and increase our capacity to resolve remaining face to face customer contact 

‘right first time’. 

10.7 It will also be necessary to undertake work on branding and identity. Both to protect 

the identity of the Councils but also to establish an appropriate brand for the new 

companies.  

10.8 There is great potential to improve the customer experience through the customer-

focussed redesign of services. The re-design of services is also an essential 

component of the efficiency savings. Consequently a programme of targeted service 

redesign will be developed and resourced as part of the next phase development of 

the partnership. 

10.9 Once the company structure has been finalised and agreed, work will be completed on 

the governance and management of the partnership. This will ensure that a strategic 

approach is taken to the delivery of each Council’s objectives with clear 

accountabilities and responsibilities.  

10.10 Work will also be undertaken to consider how property assets can be managed more 

effectively across the partnership with a view to developing a Property and Assets 

Action Plan to drive future property benefits. 

Page 76



Appendix 3 

Annex B - Company Structure and Governance Proposals 
 

Leaders Statement 

 

We have a strong track record of over three years of being committed to working collaboratively in pursuit 

of our agreed shared vision as approved by all four councils in 2014: 

 

“A number of councils, retaining their independence and identity but working together and sharing 

resources to maximise mutual benefit, leading to more efficient, effective delivery of local services.” 

 

In October 2014, we all agreed a further set of desired outcomes that would govern our work going 

forward.  These are: 

 

• Financial - respond to current and future pressure 

• Efficiency - value for money 

• Resilience – increase pool of expertise, add capacity 

• Impact - better outcomes for our communities 

• Democracy –  champion local needs 

 

As the partnership continues to develop there have already been some notable early benefits. Cashable 

savings to date are on profile with savings already delivered during 2015/16 and 2016/17 approaching 

£2.5 million. There have also been some significant non-cashable benefits including: 

  

• Improved knowledge sharing and learning  

• Increased resilience  

• More stable and improved technology  

• Smarter working practices introduced 

• Reduced office space resulting in some spaces being re-let 

• More consistent approach to HR with policies and procedures aligned 

• Future costs avoided 

 

During that time we have worked together under different governance arrangements and despite some 

differences in approach and views on how best to achieve the vision and outcomes we have proceeded 

through a process of engagement, open discussion and debate to find solutions that meet individual 

requirements. 

 

Following expert legal, tax and pension advice we are proposing to establish a group of three local 

authority owned Companies Limited by Guarantee (Appendix A) which are Public Bodies.  We believe that 

this structure provides the appropriate balance between, delivering a consistent approach across the 

“common core” organisational functions such as HR policy, Finance policy, Audit, ICT strategy and 

Customer Services Strategy; delivering the benefits of operating under a company model; and recognising 

the commercial trading opportunities and management of risks in the future. 

 

Whilst we have developed a model that is designed to be flexible for the future, we are not planning for, 

or considering any circumstances at this moment in time that might result in changes to this structure.   

Neither can we predict what external factors or new opportunities might cause us to re-consider this in 

the future.  Should something change in the future that might cause us to collectively consider changes to 

the company structures it will be necessary to go through a thorough process, building upon our trusting 

relationships between partners,  prior to shareholders being asked to approve any such proposals. 

 

It is expected that any such process would involve discussions with the Shareholder Representative Board 

who would be extensively briefed by the Board of Directors on the reasons for any proposed changes and 

the benefits (measured against the outcomes) of any such changes.  As a fundamental principle no 

changes will be made that would be detrimental to one or more of the partners even if of benefit to 

Page 77



others.  Furthermore, we will, as we have in the past, continue to work collaboratively to seek the 

agreement of all of the Partner Councils.   

 

The Partnership has a demonstrable track record of being open and transparent and will continue to do 

so.  As Public Bodies, the Companies will be required to meet their legal transparency requirements (such 

as responding to Freedom of Information requests).  We would further anticipate that as appropriate, the 

company will make relevant information available to member Councillors to assist them in undertaking 

their democratic roles.     

 

Company Governance 

 

It is proposed to initially establish “Teckal” Companies Limited by Guarantee. 

 

It is proposed that the Leader of the Council (or their named Council nominated substitute) will be the 

shareholder representative for their Council responsible for taking shareholder decisions on behalf of their 

Council. 

 

It is proposed that each Company is established with an equal shareholding and equal voting rights. 

 

It is proposed that the matters reserved to Shareholders shown below is adopted for the new companies. 

 

 

It is proposed that a Shareholders Representatives Board is established. 

 

1 Permitting the registration of any additional Members of the 

Company.   

By not less 

than 75% 

2 Adopting or amending the Business Plan in respect of each 

Financial Year.  

By not less 

than 75% 

3 Forming any subsidiary or acquiring shares in any other company 

or participating in any partnership or joint venture (incorporated 

or not).  

By not less 

than 75% 

4 Amalgamating or merging with any other company or business 

undertaking.  

By not less 

than 75%  

5 Entering into any arrangement, contract or transaction with 

either a capital or revenue value over £500,000 which is not 

included in the current approved Business Plan.  

By not less 

than 75% 

6 Agreeing the appointment and the appointment terms (including 

any remuneration terms) of all directors of the Company other 

than Shareholder Appointed Non-Executive Directors.  

By not less 

than 75% 

7 Agreeing any remuneration terms for Shareholder Appointed 

Non-Executive Directors.  

By not less 

than 75%  

8 Increasing, reducing, sub-dividing, consolidating, re-

denominating, cancelling, purchasing or redeeming any of the 

capital of, or allotting or issuing any share of the ownership or 

other securities in the capital of, the Company. 

By not less 

than 75%  

9 Altering any rights attaching to any class of ownership in the 

capital of the Company, or creating any option, warrant or any 

other right to acquire or subscribe for any share of ownership or 

other securities in the capital of the Company. 

By not less 

than 75%  

Page 78



It is proposed that to be eligible to take up membership in the Company, Councils contract to take 

significant services from the Company.  

 
 

 

Board of Directors 

 

It is proposed that candidates for the role of Non-Executive Directors are subject to a rigorous process to 

ensure that they meet the minimum levels of skills and experience required to undertake the roles   

 

It is proposed that formal terms of Appointment for Non-Executive Directors be applied to the new 

companies and that candidates meet the minimum skills and experience levels. 

 

It is proposed that each Shareholder will have the right to appoint a suitable Non-Executive Director of the 

company. This right can be exercised individually or collectively (i.e. two or more shareholders may agree 

to the appointment of the same Non-Executive Director). 

 

It is proposed that all Shareholders jointly appoint a minimum of one independent Non-Executive Director 

to the company 

 

It is proposed that the appointment of any Executive Directors of the company will be a reserved matter 

for Shareholder agreement. 

 

It is proposed that initial appointments to the Companies at establishment will be from existing Council 

resources where possible. 

 

It is expected that when a future vacancy occurs the appointment of the Executive Director(s) would be 

through open external competition 

 

It is proposed that the Partnership Managing Director brings forward draft proposals for the number of 

directors to be appointed to the boards of the companies. 

 

Commissioning Arrangements for FoDDC, CDC and WODC 

 

It is proposed that the Shareholding Councils will commit to transfer all functions and services that can be 

delegated to be provided by that Company(ies). 

 

It is proposed that the Statutory Officers will be either employed by the Council(s) and be seconded to the 

Company (ies) or employed by the Council(s) and Company (ies) under joint employment contracts. 

 

It is proposed that the non-delegable decision making officers will be employed by the Council(s) and 

Company (ies) under joint employment contracts. 

 

It is proposed to establish clear Standards of Behaviour, an Ethical Walls Policy and an Escalation 

Procedure to deal with potential conflicts of interest. 

 

Contract duration 

 

It is proposed that the initial contact durations are as follows; 

• Co-ordinating Company – 10 years + opportunity to extend for 10 years 

• Regulatory Services Company – 7 years + opportunity to extend for 7 years 

• Support Services Company – 5 years + opportunity to extend for two further periods each 

of 4 years 

 

 

 

Page 79



 

 

 

 

 

Service Performance 

 

It is proposed that the current service plans and service levels are used for the service specifications for 

the companies. 

 

It is proposed to establish core service specifications and standards. Additional services and standards can 

be specified at additional cost. 

 

It is proposed that Partnership Board meetings are held between the Companies and relevant Service 

Portfolio Holder(s). 

 

It is proposed that each Council has the right to summon a Company Director (or an appropriate 

substitute) to account to Overview & Scrutiny Committee. 

 

Advice, Decisions and Timescales 

 

It is proposed that the external legal and tax advice already received is sufficient to enable the Councils to 

make the decision to establish the companies 

 

It is proposed that any subsequent decisions necessary to implement the company model should be 

delegated to each Council’s Head of Paid Service in consultation with the Leader of the Council, S151 

Officer, Monitoring Officer and the Partnership Managing Director.  

 

It is proposed that the company model is implemented without delay based on a majority decision. 

 

It is proposed that commitment is given for the transfer of the agreed services to the companies by 

Autumn 2017. 

 

Staffing Matters 

 

It is expected that when the company(ies) are established  they will agree to Trade Union recognition. 

 

It is proposed that the company(ies) apply to be an admitted body of the appropriate local government 

pension schemes with a closed scheme for existing shareholder council employees and also to provide a 

stakeholder pension scheme for new employees. 

 

It is proposed that the company (ies) will operate a total reward approach to reward and recognition for 

company employees 

 

Exit arrangements  

 

It is proposed that the principle of withdrawal with suitable notice at the cost of the exiting party is 

adopted. 

 

It is proposed that the service contracts will specify the notice period to end a contract and any conditions. 

 

It is proposed that the shareholders’ agreement will specify the notice for any conditions concerning the 

withdrawal from the company and any disposal or handing back of shares. 

 

  

Page 80



 

 

P
age 81



Page 82



 

   

   

 

 

Cheltenham Borough Council 

Overview and Scrutiny – 12 September 2016 

Council – 17 October 2016 

Annual Report on Overview and Scrutiny  

 

Accountable member Chair of Overview and Scrutiny Committee, Councillor Tim Harman 

Accountable officers Democratic Services Manager, Rosalind Reeves 

Accountable scrutiny 
committee 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Ward(s) affected All indirectly 

Significant Decision No   

Executive summary The Overview and Scrutiny Committee manages and coordinates scrutiny at 
the council, with scrutiny task groups carrying out the detailed work and 
reporting back to the main committee.  

Under these arrangements the Overview and Scrutiny Committee produce 
an annual report for Council and this is contained in appendix 2. This report 
sets out the achievements of scrutiny over the last 12 months and in 
particular highlights the outcomes of a range of scrutiny task groups.  

Scrutiny welcomes the opportunity for Council to debate this report and give 
its views on the success or otherwise of the scrutiny arrangements.  

Recommendations The Overview and Scrutiny Committee is asked to endorse the Annual 
Report of Overview and Scrutiny 2015-16 and forward it to Council to 
be noted.  

Council is asked to note the Annual Report of Overview and Scrutiny 
2015-16.   

 

Financial implications There are no financial implications arising from this report.  

 

Contact officer:  Paul Jones,  paul.jones@cheltenham.gov.uk,  

01242 775154 

 

Legal implications There are no legal implications arising from the recommendation within 
this report.  
 

Contact officer:  Peter Lewis, peter.lewis@tewkesbury.gov.uk, 01684 
272012 

Agenda Item 11
Page 83



 

   

   

 

HR implications 
(including learning and 
organisational 
development)  

There are no direct HR implications arising from this report.  

Contact officer: Julie McCarthy, Julie.McCarthy@cheltenham.gov.uk 
01242 26 4355 

Key risks The original risk assessment which accompanied the report to Council in 
December 2011 has been updated with an assessment of the current risks 
affecting the effectiveness of the O&S arrangements and is attached as 
Appendix 1.  

Corporate and 
community plan 
Implications 

An effective overview and scrutiny process can contribute to positive 
outcomes on any of the objectives in the Corporate Strategy. 

Increased public involvement in Overview and Scrutiny will support the 
corporate objective ‘Our residents enjoy a strong sense of community and 
are involved in resolving local issues’.  

Environmental and 
climate change 
implications 

None 

 

Report author Contact officer: Saira Malin, Democracy Officer,  
Saira.Malin@cheltenham.gov.uk, 01242 77 5153 

Appendices 1. Risk Assessment 

2. Annual Report 

Background information Minutes of Overview and Scrutiny 12 September 2016 where the 
annual report was considered (not available until the 26 September 
2016 at the latest) 

 

Page 84



 

   

$1kf5sf1o Page 3 of 5 Last updated 13 September 2016 

 

Risk Assessment                  Appendix 1  

 

The risk Original risk score 

(impact x likelihood) 

Managing risk 

Risk 
ref. 

Risk description Risk 

Owner 

Date raised Impact 

1-4 

Likeli- 

hood 

1-6 

Score Control Action Comments as at August 2016 

 If O&S does not 
take an active role 
in the major 
change 
programmes it 
may lose its 
opportunity to 
influence the 
scrutiny 
arrangements in 
any new proposed 
ways of working 

Chair of O&S 21/09/2015 3 3 9 Reduce O&S to include 
scrutiny of 
change 
programmes in 
its workplan and 
ensure it is 
consulted on any 
future scrutiny 
arrangements 

Member seminars have been held at 
appropriate times and the committee 
are due to undertake a Q&A on 2020 
with the Cabinet Member Corporate 
Services in September 2016, before 
the business case for a Local 
Authority Company is considered by 
Cabinet and Council in October 2016.  

 If any new 
arrangements are 
not supported by a 
change in culture 
across members 
and officers they 
may not be 
successful in 
delivering the 
outcomes 
required. 
 

Rosalind 
Reeves 

27/9/11 3 3 9 Reduce Get members 
and officers buy 
in during the 
review by 
seeking their 
views and ideas. 
Seek advice on 
cultural change 
during the next 
phase. 

There is now a much better 
understanding of the new scrutiny 
arrangements by officers and 
members who have been involved in 
scrutiny task groups and the 
relationship between Cabinet and 
scrutiny has been developed.  
Training was held for new members 
following the May 2016 elections and 
further Officer training will be 
organised in due course.  

 If the council 
cannot dedicate 
resources to 
support the 
scrutiny process 

Rosalind 
Reeves 

1/12/11 3 2 6 Accept Optimise the use 
of existing 
resources in the 
new 
arrangements   

The importance of facilitation support 
from Democratic Services for scrutiny 
task groups has been highlighted by 
members as a success factor. 
Democratic Services resources are 

P
age 85



 

   

$1kf5sf1o Page 4 of 5 Last updated 13 September 2016 

 

then the O&S 
process will not be 
fully effective. 

limited so members will need to 
carefully prioritise all scrutiny task 
group reviews to ensure they make 
optimum use of the resources 
available.  This was reinforced by the 
LGA peer review team in 2015 who 
suggested that the scrutiny work plan 
should focus on high priority areas 
given the limited resources available.   

 If the task groups 
operate outside of 
the democratic 
process, then 
scrutiny could 
become disjointed 
and progress 
difficult to control 
and track.  

Rosalind 
Reeves 

1/12/11 3 2 6 Accept Guidance to 
officers 
supporting task  
groups on 
keeping 
documentation 
and reporting 
back to 
Democratic 
services.    

See note above. Task groups 
facilitated by officers outside 
democratic services have sometimes 
been less well documented and more 
difficult to track progress but officers 
have been encouraged to adopt 
standard procedures and good 
practice. This has been assisted by 
the production of a scrutiny guide 
available on the intranet.  

 If members do not 
put themselves 
forward for task 
groups the 
workload could be 
unevenly shared 
across members 
and be a source of 
potential conflict or 
result in task 
groups not having 
the right skill mix.  

Groups 
Leaders 

1/12/11 3 3 9 Reduce Utilise the skills 
audit 

Group Leaders to 
manage, monitor 
and encourage 
participation 

 

Task groups to 
maintain records 
of attendance 

Members have been putting 
themselves forward for task groups 
but this still tends to be a similar set of 
members and in some cases the 
Members’ Skills audit has been useful 
in identifying topics which individual 
members may be interested in or have 
specialist knowledge about.  Still 
though, not all members respond and 
we need to understand why.   

 If scrutiny does not 
have any 
dedicated budget it 
will be difficult to 
promote public 
involvement and 

Council  1/12/11 2 3 6 Accept Utilise relevant 
project budgets 

Consider 
allocating small 
budget to O&S as 

Scrutiny does not have a dedicated 
budget but this has not been a 
significant issue to date. It could 
become more of an issue if O&S 
wanted to buy in some outside 

P
age 86



 

   

$1kf5sf1o Page 5 of 5 Last updated 13 September 2016 

 

engagement  part of budget 
round 

expertise at any point.  

Explanatory notes 
Impact – an assessment of the impact if the risk occurs on a scale of 1-4 (4 being the greatest impact) 
Likelihood – how likely is it that the risk will occur on a scale of 1-6 (6 being most likely) 
Control - Either: Reduce / Accept / Transfer to 3rd party / Close 

 

 
 
 
 

P
age 87



Page 88



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Scrutiny Annual Report 2015 – 2016 
(a summary of highlights) 
 
 

Page 89



 

 
 
 
 1 Foreword from the Chair of O&S  
 
 2 Pat Pratley – Head of Paid Service 
 
 3 Scrutiny Structure  
 
 4 Scrutiny Task Groups 2015-16  
 
 5 Other scrutiny successes  
 
 6 Overview and Scrutiny– what’s next?  
 
 7 Contacts  
 
 8 Scrutiny Registration Form for new topics   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Contents 
 
 

Page 90



 

1. Foreword 
Chair of Overview and Scrutiny Committee: 
Councillor Tim Harman 

 
 
 
 

I am pleased to present the Overview and Scrutiny annual report 2015-
16. 
 
The committee co-ordinates the Overview and Scrutiny function of the 
Council; which it does by maintaining an overview of performance and 
commissioning scrutiny task groups to carry out detailed work.   It is also 
responsible for receiving call-ins of Cabinet decisions and determining 
how they should be dealt with, though there have been no call-ins in the 
last year. 

 
Over the last year, the committee has taken a keen interest in engaging with external 
bodies and organisations on issues that are important to the Town and residents, 
including; meeting with the Police and Crime Commissioner, receiving a presentation 
from the Lido Trust, reviewing lessons learnt by Severn Trent following a programme 
of work carried out across the Town and discussing future plans for sites at 
Cheltenham and Gloucester with the Gloucestershire Hospitals Foundation Trust.  The 
Railway Station and Cycling & Walking scrutiny task groups reported their findings to 
Cabinet in Autumn 2015 and work is ongoing by the Devolution and Broadband (joint 
scrutiny with Gloucester City Council) task groups, which will make recommendations 
in due course.    
 
I would like to take this opportunity to thank, both, members of the committee and 
those that have taken part in scrutiny task groups, as well as officers, for their hard 
work and commitment throughout the last year. 
 
Looking ahead, the committee will continue to focus on adding value to delivery of the 
Council’s priorities and to shining a light on issues of concern to the Town and its 
residents, in the most effective and appropriate way it can. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 91



 

2. Pat Pratley  
Head of Paid Service 
 

 
 

The overview and scrutiny committee has continued, through a 
number of scrutiny task groups, to fulfil its role in local democracy 
by holding the Cabinet, officers and the wider council to account. 
Members will be aware, as was mentioned in last year’s 
introduction, that the council continues to go through a period of 
major change, organisationally, at the same time as, for example, 
responding to the outcome of the EU referendum and continuing to 
work with the other Gloucestershire authorities on proposals for 
devolution. 

The financial pressures facing the council are no less demanding than last year and 
therefore the role that the budget scrutiny working group continues to play will be as 
important as ever.  Furthermore, the implications for 100% retention of business rates 
and the fair funding review will have implications for the future shape of local 
government finance and service delivery for many years to come.   
 
This year’s report shows the breadth of the work undertaken by scrutiny and an active 
and keen interest to engage more widely with those who have a role to play in shaping 
Cheltenham as a place.  The work with regard to broadband and the railway station are 
examples of members of scrutiny being actively engaged in things that matter to the 
economic prosperity of the town, as were the receipt of representations from Severn 
Trent and the Gloucestershire Hospitals Trust on their work and plans.   
 
Looking forward the continued focus on improving the prosperity of Cheltenham as a 
place, economically, socially and culturally is going to be even more important.  The 
challenge for scrutiny members, as was the case last year, is to ensure they actively 
participate, and through the scrutiny process continue to question, challenge and add 
value to the council’s decision making processes during what is likely to be another 
period of change, challenge but also exciting opportunities. 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

Page 92



 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

3. Overview and Scrutiny Structure 
 

Officer Support

Member Seminars and 

Briefings
Member Training

Budget 

Scrutiny 

Working 

Group

Rep on 

County 

Health, 

Community & 

Care O&S 

Committee

Rep on County 

Community 

Safety O&S 

Committee and 

Police and Crime 

Panel 

(Advisory)
Commissioning 
working groups

Standing and 

ad-hoc 

Scrutiny Task 

Groups

Council

Appoints O&S Chairman and Members

Receives annual report

(Advisory)

AMWG/TMP

Overview & Scrutiny 

Committee
Commissions O&S work through scrutiny task 

groups, joint work with other authorities or itself

Cabinet

Receives recommendations 

from and refers matters to O&S

Audit 

Committee

Rep on 

County

Economic 

Growth O&S 

Committee

Page 93



 

Scrutiny Task Groups 2015-16 
 
  

4.0 Budget scrutiny working group 
Chairman: Councillor Chris Nelson 

The budget scrutiny working group forms a permanent part of the scrutiny 
arrangements at Cheltenham Borough Council.  The rationale being that the budget is a 
complex area that cannot be scrutinised effectively as a one-off exercise.  Members of 
this working group have built up their expertise and understanding of financial matters 
so that they can review the budget strategy, the bridging the gap programme and be in 
a position to respond to the budget proposals as well as scrutinising the business cases 
of major projects within the commissioning framework.  

  
Chair of the working group, Councillor Chris Nelson said that “The Budget Scrutiny 
Working Group continues to do good work, examining key Council budgetary proposals 
and asking searching questions on a whole range of issues, including: our car parking 
strategy, or lack of one; long term investment to find new sources of income; energy 
supply; recycling budgetary under performance; capital works planning and associated 
delays; business rates; planning fees; new homes bonus; whether we should apply for a 
4 year funding settlement; and much, much more.  We have a good working 
relationship with officers and the working group plays an important part in the Council's 
financial programming." 

The working group considered the budget proposals at their meeting in January 2016 
and as a result made a number of recommendations to O&S which were forwarded to 
Cabinet. These recommendations covered their views on investment assets, the council 
tax freeze, pooled business rates and the use of the reserves to support the medium 
term financial strategy. They were all taken account of in the final budget proposals to 
Council in February and the Cabinet Member Finance thanked the group for their 
valuable input.    
 
During the year the budget scrutiny working group have been responsive to urgent 
requests and have scrutinised the accommodation strategy in some detail and the 
financial aspects of the REST project before that went to Council. They have now been 
given an important action by Council to ensure that the financial benefits of the REST 
project are delivered.  
 
The Director of Corporate Resources and Projects also commented that ’’ this has been a 
very valuable process which has given members an opportunity to input into the 
development of the budget proposals and key initiatives which has added value to the 
process. The financial position remains very challenging and it is very both helpful and 
important to have a forum for deeper consideration of the issues facing the council and 
wider member influence over the strategy for dealing with it.’’ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 94



 

4.1 Cheltenham Spa Railway Station Scrutiny Task 
Group 
Chair: Councillor Roger Whyborn 

Task group members: Councillors Flo Clucas, Chris Mason, Dan Murch, John Payne and 
Max Wilkinson 
Officer support: Jeremy Williamson (Cheltenham Development Task Force) and Saira 
Malin 
 
Initiated in September 2014, the task group were asked to better understand the 
franchise renewal process.  The group were also tasked with developing a wish-list of 
improvements to the station, transport links and rail service itself and establish if and how 
they were being progressed.  In April 2015 the DfT extended the London train service 
franchise with the existing franchisee, First Great Western, by a period of three and a half 
years and therefore the task group did not undertake to understand the franchise renewal 
process further and instead focussed on the other objectives.   
 
Having met with a variety of experts, including representatives from Network Rail, First 
Great Western and Stagecoach West; the group agreed a number of recommendations 
which were tabled with Cabinet in November 2015. 
 
Cabinet have yet to formally respond to the recommendations of the task group but in 
June 2016 the Leader updated the Overview and Scrutiny Committee that;     
     

· Collectively (ie via rail industry and Task Force) we now have secured all 5 separate 
funding streams 

· GWR/Network Rail are progressing designs and programmes 

· A positive meeting held on 27/05/16 between rail industry, CBC, Stagecoach, GCC, 
cycle lobby over some draft concepts, notably the forecourt changes  – feedback from 
this will inform next iteration of proposals 

· Unsure of a timeline as action/lead rests with rail industry but hope to have a revised 
design for wider consultation later this summer 

 

4.2 Cycling and Walking Scrutiny Task Group 
Chair: Councillor Max Wilkinson 

Task group members: Councillors Tim Harman, Adam Lillywhite, Max Wilkinson and 
Suzanne Williams 
Co-opted members: John Mallows (Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Cycling campaign), 
Bronwen Thornton (Walk21) and John Newbury (Living Streets) 
Officer support:  Rhonda Tauman, Wilf Tomaney and Tess Beck  
 
Set up in September 2014 following the submission of a ‘scrutiny topic registration form’, 
the task group were tasked with identifying opportunities for improving provision for 
cycling and walking in Cheltenham and making recommendations which would facilitate 
these improvements.  
 
The group met with a variety of officers from the borough and county, as well as seeking 
advice from experts and they even undertook a field trip to Bristol to see what could be 
achieved through implementing a cycling and walking strategy supported by a team of 
dedicated cycling officers at Bristol City Council. 

 

Page 95



 

The task group devised a number of recommendations and tabled these with Cabinet in 
November 2015.        

Cabinet provided a formal response to the recommendation, which it accepted in full in 
January 2016.   

 

4.3 Devolution  Scrutiny Task Group 
Chair: Councillor Chris Mason  

Task group members: Councillors Flo Clucas (now Cabinet Member), Chris Mason, 
Tim Harman, Colin Hay, John Payne, Roger Whyborn (now Cabinet Member) and Parish 
Councillor Mike Palmer. Following the elections in May – Councillors Suzanne Williams 
and Paul McCloskey have joined the group 
Officer support: Rosalind Reeves 
 
 

The scrutiny task group devolution 
was set up following a suggestion 
by the Leader of the Council at the 
21 September 2015 meeting of the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee to 
identify the opportunities for 
Cheltenham that Members would 
want explored in any devolution 
arrangements for Gloucestershire. 
The group could also act as a 
sounding board for Members as the 
devolution bid develops and review 
any governance and scrutiny 
arrangements being proposed. 
 

The group has met four times since last October. Their first meetings were concerned 
with getting up to speed on the bid that had been worked up over the summer and both 
the Leader and the Chief Executive were in attendance to answer any questions and 
give them the latest updates.  
 
Overall the scrutiny task group were supportive of the initiative of working with our 
partners to explore the opportunities offered by devolution with the potential for more 
local decision making and local spending power. They were keen to engage as a critical 
friend and in particular assert what was good for Cheltenham in any negotiations taking 
place particularly with regard to local decision making on transport issues.  
 
The task group last met in January 2016. On the 25 February Leadership Gloucestershire 
were advised of the Cotswold Unitary bid and then the government delayed any 
announcements on the Gloucestershire Bid in the Chancellor’s budget statement in 
March.   These events together with local election and referendum meant that work was 
put on hold for a while. The task group understand that devolution discussions are now 
underway again and the chair will call a meeting of the task group once there are any 
firm proposals for the group to discuss.     
 
 
 
 
 

Page 96



 

4.5 Broadband Scrutiny Task Group (joint with 
Gloucester City Council) 
Chair: (formerly) Councillor Roger Whyborn 

Task group members: Councillors Matt Babbage, Nigel Britter, Neil Hampson 
(Gloucester City Council), Gordon Taylor (Gloucester City Council) and Roger Whyborn 
Officer support:  Annette Wight and Rosalind Reeves 

The task group met for the first time in October 2015, after the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee set it up to undertake joint scrutiny with Gloucester City Council.  Their terms 
of reference were as follows:  
   

· To establish what areas in Cheltenham and Gloucester require improved 
broadband service  

· To understand the reasons why this service has not already been improved in 
those areas 

· To lobby the relevant organisations to see what can be done 

Fastershire, who are tasked with improving broadband delivery to Gloucestershire and 
Herefordshire using government funding, were able to provide a map which identified 
problem areas in Cheltenham and Gloucester. The group then invited BT to their next 
meeting who gave a presentation and then answered their detailed questions. The 
group requested officer support in clarifying the responsibilities of Fastershire and BT for 
resolving some of the problem areas and to then report back to the task group.   
 
Following the elections in May 2016, the Chairman of the task group was subsequently 
elected to the Cabinet. Scrutiny Members were invited to join the group and the vacancy 
was filled by Councillor Adam Lillywhite in June 2016.  The county council advised in 
August that they could no longer provide officer resources to support the scrutiny task 
group and instead they would be reporting to the Gloucestershire Economic Growth O&S 
Committee.  The former Chairman and Officers have drafted an interim report for the 
O&S committee to consider at their meeting in September which sets out a number of 
options on the way forward for addressing this important issue for Cheltenham.  
 

Other scrutiny successes 
 
  

5.0 Severn Trent  
Representatives of Severn Trent were invited to present ‘Lessons Learnt’ to the 
committee following a 12 month programme of work across multiple locations 
throughout Cheltenham.  
 
Members shared examples of some of the positive feedback that had been received 
from residents and businesses across the Town and congratulated Severn Trent on what 
members considered to have been a ‘job very well done’. 
 

5.1 Gloucestershire Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust  

Page 97



 

Members were pleased to be able to welcome Professor Clair Chilvers and Dr Sally 
Pearson, Chair and Vice-Chair of the Gloucestershire Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust.  
 
Whilst responsibility for scrutiny of this body officially lies with the Health and Care 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee at County level, the Trust accepted an invitation to 
meet with the committee.   
 
They provided a short presentation and answered member questions on the future plans 
for the estates at Cheltenham and Gloucester.       

 
5.2 The Cheltenham Trust 

Julie Finch, Chief Executive of the Cheltenham Trust gave a presentation which set out 
the Trusts aims and objectives and outlined some performance highlights from their first 
year of operation.   
 

5.3 Overview and Scrutiny Training  
8 new councillors were elected in the May 2016 borough elections and Overview and 
Scrutiny training formed part of the Induction Programme offered to new members.   
 
Whilst only 1 of the newly elected members was appointed to the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee, 9 members in total, including some existing members who simply wanted a 
better understanding of the scrutiny process, attended the training. 
 

5.4 Q&A with Cabinet Members 
The committee receives Cabinet briefings at each meeting; outlining anything Cabinet 
feel would be of particular interest to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee.   
 
In addition to this, the committee recently invited the Cabinet Member Clean and Green 
Environment to a Q&A session on the recycling review. 
 
Members felt that this was a really useful exercise and decided to undertake to do this 
on a more regular basis; inviting a Cabinet Member to a Q&A session on a particular 
topic.  
 
 

6. Overview and Scrutiny – what’s 

next? 
 
§ The September meeting of the committee will be held at St Vincent’s and St 

Georges Association on Winchcombe Street.  The committee will be given a tour 
of the facilities before the meeting and a presentation on disabled access in the 
Town will form part of the meeting.   
 

§ Cabinet Member Corporate Services has been invited to attend the September 
meeting of the committee and answer questions about 2020.  
 

§ A review of the prevalence of begging and rough sleeping in the Town centre 
has been initiated.  
 

Page 98



 

§ Cheltenham Festivals have been invited to attend the October meeting of the 
committee to discuss current performance and future plans.   
 

§ The October meeting will focus on ‘Place’ with the committee reviewing the 
strategies (as they stand) for Tourism, Car Parking and Economic Development.  
 

§ Further Overview and Scrutiny training to develop officer’s skills and 
understanding of the scrutiny process will be arranged for later in the year.  
 

§ We would welcome any suggestions or thoughts on how we can make the 
overview and scrutiny process better.  Please contact one of the Democratic 
Services team.  

 

7. Contacts 
 

 
Rosalind Reeves 
Democratic Services Manager 
rosalind.reeves@cheltenham.gov.uk 
01242 774937 

 
 

 
Saira Malin 
Democracy Officer 
saira.malin@cheltenham.gov.uk   
01242 775153 

 
Beverly Thomas 
Democracy Officer 
beverly.thomas@cheltenham.gov.uk 
01242 775049 

 
Annette Wight  
Democracy Assistant 
annette.wight@cheltenham.gov.uk 
01242 264130 

 
 

 
Postal address: 
Democratic Services 
Cheltenham Borough Council 
Municipal Offices 
The Promenade 
Cheltenham 
GL50 9SA 
 
Email: Democratic.services@cheltenham.gov.uk 

 

Page 99



 

SCRUTINY TOPIC REGISTRATION 
 
Do YOU have a topic that you think Cheltenham Borough 
Council should scrutinise? Please fill out the following form 
and return to Democratic Services. 
 

 

Date:  
 

 

Name of person proposing topic: 
 

 

Contact details: email and telephone 
no:  

 

Suggested title of topic:  
 
    
 

What is the issue that scrutiny needs to address?  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

What do you feel could be achieved by a scrutiny review (outcomes) 

 
 
 
 

If there a strict time constraint?  

Is the topic important to the people of 
Cheltenham?   

 

Does the topic involve a poorly 
performing service or high public 
dissatisfaction with a service?  

 

Is it related to the Council’s corporate 

objectives?  
 

Any other comments: 
 
 
 

 

Page 100


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the last meeting
	9 Petition regarding Changes to the C Bus Route in Springbank
	10 Vision 2020: Business Case for Local Authority Company
	2016_10_11_CAB_2020_Partnership_Local_Authority_Company_App2
	2016_10_11_CAB_2020_Partnership_Local_Authority_Company_App3

	11 Overview and Scrutiny Annual Report 2015-16
	2016_10_17_O&S_Annual_report


